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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dong Haoran E#&
Chairman /&

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2018 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) achieved a sale revenue of HK$1,687.0
million, representing an increase of 16.1% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year,
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
was HK$113.3 million, representing a decrease of
48.5% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease in profit was primarily
attributable to the recognition by the Group of a
one-off gain before taxation of HK$102.5 million
arising from the disposal of its navigation chips
business in 2017. Basic earnings per share was HK5.58
cents.

AANEBERRPBEETERABRFEBERAA (AR
ANEEe([EEg)EM ' 2018FARRI RHE
EAR ([AEE]) BERHEEWA687.088%
T BEFRE ET16.1% @ D TR ML
FAENSIEEBT  REFRETFEI8.5% %
HATREBRAR0MI7TEAEERERALEHE
MEREBEAZ XN EBRBEAKI102588
BT - BREKREF A5 5881 -

4 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2018



The Board recommends the payment of a dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK3.0 cents), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$40.6 million. Subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the dividend will be distributed
on or about 31 July 2019.

In 2018, with the tremendous assistance from the
Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, China
Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"”) and through
its unsecured guarantee support, the Company
successfully raised RMB1.9 billion new unsecured
short-term bank borrowings to repay its existing
unsecured short-term bank borrowings.

As a leader of the security smart card chips industry
in the PRC, our products are mainly used in sectors
such as identity authentication, financial payment,
government utilities, as well as telecommunication and
mobile payment. In 2018, the Group actively opened
up the market and made great progress in the area
of security chips and system solutions. In the future,
the Group will continue to research and develop, and
launch security chip products that meet the application
needs of the market and the industry.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

BECEHENEZ2018F12A31BILFERNGST
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Looking into 2019, competition across the domestic
and international integrated circuits industry will
intensify, and the product selling price will see a
more apparent decreasing trend. However, due to the
further application of the domestic-made substitute
and the state cryptographic algorithm, certain sectors
of the smart card chips market will provide market
opportunities for the Group. In particular, the overall
market capacity for financial payment chips will remain
stable, and the market share of domestic-made chips
will see further increase; the third-generation social
security cards will enter large-scale application stage
following the success in the pilot cities. The Group will
continue to closely track domestic market demands,
seize market opportunities, actively explore potential
customers, strengthen the construction of sales
channels and expand its scale. In addition, the Group
will promote the industrial application of security chips,
continue to strengthen new business layouts that
could drive future revenue growth, strive to provide
diversified and high quality products that meet the
demands of customers and markets.

On the other hand, based on its security and
application technology developed and accumulated
over the years, increasing investment in technological
research on high reliability and a market orientated
approach, the Group will strengthen its research in
areas such as Internet of Things system technology,
security technology, smart card chips technology, and
production process technology, and take forward the
development of products such as Internet of Things
security chips and system solution, and Internet of
Things secure operation and maintenance platforms
in a progressive manner, as well as strengthen the
applications for industries such as smart cities, smart
manufacturing, smart transportation, smart home,
automotive electronics etc., and continuously strive to
enhance its core competitiveness in the industry and
the market of Internet of Things.

RE2019%F - BIASMEERITRBEF K E B
N EmEEERNTHRBEEE QAR -BE
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Mr. Jiang Juncheng resigned as the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and executive director of the Company
in March 2019. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to thank Mr. Jiang for his invaluable contributions
during his tenure of service. On behalf of the Board,
| am delighted to welcome Mr. Yu Jian as the Deputy
Chairman of the Board and executive director of the
Company. The new director will no doubt extend the
diversity and supplement the talent base of the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
staff members for their contributions and efforts in the
past year. | would also like to express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing co-operation and support.

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$1,687.0 million, representing
an increase of 16.1% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$113.3
million, representing a decrease of 48.5% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.
The decrease in profit was primarily attributable to
the recognition by the Group of a one-off gain before
taxation of HK$102.5 million arising from the disposal
of its navigation chips business for the year ended
31 December 2017. The basic earnings per share was
HK5.58 cents (2017: HK10.84 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of security smart card chips and
the development of application system. Currently, the
Group's products are mainly used in sectors such as
identity authentication, financial payment, government
utilities, telecommunication and mobile payment. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
obtained 63 new patents, registered 4 new software
copyrights and 6 new integrated circuits layout designs.

Ko
E R

ANEBEB =2018F12A31BIEFE 2 RA A
1,687.08 88T REFRMB EFA16.1% - AR
RESEEERIMEFN A1133BEB T  REF
EHEI T F548.5%  Zufl THREZEZEANRNER
2017F12A31HIEFE  A5EERLEELEM
SREBEEZ —RERBAIKE102.588 BT
FTEl - EIREREF) A5.58%8 1L (20174 : 10.84
PEAL) o

EREBRRIAER

AEBEZENERITEBRESTLRRELET
R RERRAEMAE - B AEEBERE
EBEZEH5MHEN  SRIN BINAREX B
EHB BT NERAEE - #{22018F12H31H
LEFE - AEBEFEREZENG63IE - HEL4EH
HEERFEMeEER E R B R -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2018, the economic growth in the PRC slowed
down, but the domestic market of integrated circuits
still flourished with strong demand. Yet, product selling
price continued to fall due to fiercer competition in
the industry. In particular, driven by the maturity of
domestic-made chip technology and the policy on the
issuance of state cryptographic algorithm powered
bank cards, the market demand for domestic-made
financial payment chips grew rapidly, which also led
to intensifying competition and falling product selling
price. In 2018, the Group successful participated in
bank card projects of various major domestic banks,
sales volume of the financial payment chips of the
Group increased significantly when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. Meanwhile, as
the replacement process of the second-generation
social security cards progressed, the issuance of the
second-generation social security cards accelerated,
and coupled with the supply of the third-generation
social security cards in the first tranche of pilot
cities has began in 2018, sales volume of the social
security card chips increased when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. Sales volume of
identity authentication as well as telecommunication
and mobile payment smart card chips remained stable
and decreased slightly respectively when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year. Sales
volume of logic card chips decreased significantly when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year
due to changes in business planning. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, overall sales volume of the
Group decreased by 1.8% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. Since the types of
smart card chips that recorded growth in sales volume
for the year ended 31 December 2018 were mainly
financial payment and social security products with unit
price higher than the weighted average selling price,
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was HK$1,687.0 million, representing an increase
of 16.1% when comparing with the corresponding
period of last year.

BEEEFNWRE DM

2018 F R R B RIREBATNEE - HBIRNERK
ERMBNEDNRRERBERKRY  BI7EREH
BRIZ EREEERFBEE TR - Hih - BEE
ENR R R INERZE XSmRS RK
RE BESRIMCAMESERERAR -
BMEBEYHEFMNE EREEERIFIETK-
2018 F AEBE KNS EHBEAZ KBITHRIT
RIEE  2RIMNCREHEEREFRBA KNG
R-RAF BEF_RLESRERBENEE
FRMERERERER  M2EF=RELER
ERE—#H#AMBETHERERNFARBERE -
FAMLERERCHHEERAF RN A AT
R FMEp ECEBRES S MERR LA AE
CEEREAFRBPDREE REMTIE - MBEHFK
SREXEBRES L BRHEHEEREZFRBK
18 TBE - EZ2018F12A31HILFE » KEEA
HEEREFRB TR TI1.8% ARE 22018
FNRANALFEHESHGERNZTESEFR
SREEREERRMETHEEN ST A
HEREER  ANEBEZE2018F12A3181EF
EHKRARIES7.08BE L REFRB LA
16.1% o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

Through successfully conducting research of, applying
and promoting different types of raw materials, the
Group has not only relieved the problem of shortage of
raw material, but also controlled and reduced cost to a
certain extent, and partly offset the negative effect on
the overall gross profit margin of the year brought by
the decrease in selling price of financial payment chips
as well as telecommunication and mobile payment
chips when comparing with the corresponding period
of last year due to intensifying competition in the
market. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
overall gross profit margin was 31.5%, representing
a drop of 2.9 percentage points from 34.4% of the
corresponding period of last year.

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$90.3 million (2017:
HK$97.6 million). The percentage of selling and
marketing costs to revenue decreased to 5.4% from
6.7% of the corresponding period of last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the continuous
implementation by the Group of stringent cost control
measures during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$343.6 million,
representing an increase of 3.2% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. The percentage
of administrative expenses to revenue decreased to
20.4% from 22.9% of the corresponding period of last
year. The Group continued to implement stringent cost
control measures during the year.

ARAEEBEXNERTRRMENHR - F
BAMEE BRERTREMAZHREE  bE—T
RELERTKAMNRBRE  WRE TFREHET
MERRBEEEBSH AN MERENZHZUE
BHZECRNEEREFRB TR FAER
ENZNEAETE - HZE2018F12A831BIEFE
MEBRENEE31.5%  BEFFREA34.4%H
D2 9 EH D E o

HE2018F12A31MHIEFEMNHEE T HHEREK
KNA0IEEB T (2017F : 97.6EEBTT) ° 4
ENTHERRAGRANE D LB EFREH
6.7% NBEE54% - THRHNFERAEARFANAE
B BTN T RS AR AT ST

HZE2018F12A31B Lt FEMITHAY £343.6
BEET  REFEHLEFA3.2% - ITHE MK
AWBDLLAEFREMN229% TEE20.4% °
FAREEEEE MRS ANIESI T o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to HK$211.8 million
(2017: HK$224.9 million). The percentage of research
and development costs to revenue was 12.6% (2017:
15.5%). The Group continued to implement the
integration and centralised planning of research and
development resources as well as stringent cost control
measures during the year. Research and development
during the year primarily focused on the continuous
improvements in product functions and performance,
advanced research of new process, enhancement of
product security technology, research in application of
security chips in the Internet of Things sector and the
development of application systems and solutions.

Other income

Government grants recognised as income decreased
by 30.0% to HK$14.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 resulted from less government
subsidies received for research and development costs
incurred in the year.

Share of result of an associate

China Electronics Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (“CEOVU"), the Group’s associate listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, is
principally engaged in the business of development
and operation of large-scale business parks in the PRC.
The Group’s share of result from CEOVU for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$126.0 million (2017:
HK$124.1 million).

BEEFNWE DN

HE2018F12AMBIEFEZHRERFAEXNER A
211.8E 8B (20174 : 22498 & B L) - %X
NMAEBERAMGRANET DL A12.6% (20174F :
155%) - FRASEELEERHELRFAEEIR
MBLSESG—EE - WEE T BRIEABRAEH S
Mo FRIAT N FEE BRI ERNE RN GE KR
MIFER  FIENEN  ERT 2R
5 ERRYBEEENLTEERRAKRER
REMBRFROFAE -

Hew A

ARAEEFREZ=2018F12A31B L FE AW
ERRBEKAES 2 BTEBRLY  FREER
BUWAZ BT TH30.0%214 5888 °

BiE—EBEQTRE

KEB 7 BEBHMARXSHMARAR FHHE QA
RENABAERARAG ([FEXR ) Z2TE
X¥EAENTERERSEREREEANEXR - A%
BEZ2018F12A3MHILFERGRELAZE
ER1260BBB T (2017F 124 1BEHBT) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, and
bank and other borrowings. At 31 December 2018,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$375.5 million, of which 90.2% was denominated
in Renminbi, 8.0% in Hong Kong dollars and 1.8% in
United States dollars (2017: HK$373.8 million, of which
96.8% was denominated in Renminbi, 2.3% in United
States dollars and 0.9% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$2,295.3 million, of which 97.5%
were denominated in Renminbi and 2.5% in Hong
Kong dollars (2017: HK$2,314.5 million, of which
95.6% were denominated in Renminbi and 4.4%
in Hong Kong dollars). Among these borrowings, (i)
HK$57.5 million were secured by deposits of the Group
and HK$2,237.8 million were unsecured (2017: all were
unsecured), and (ii) HK$2,237.8 million and HK$57.5
million were borrowed at fixed and variable interest
rates respectively (2017: HK$2,214.5 million and
HK$100.0 million were borrowed at fixed and variable
interest rates respectively). At 31 December 2018,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group
but not drawn amounted to HK$2,746.1 million.

The Group's revenue are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$1,167.9 million (2017: HK$1,258.1
million). The gearing ratio, which is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity and net debt of the Group,
was 49.7% (2017: 48.7%).

MBERRABES

AEEBERBRNIBERMEBITREAMEE TR
BEBEESMENR - N2018F12A31H » K&EH
BEREMREEEYWA3IISSEEBT HilA
90.2% A AR « 8.0% B L X1.8%IAETTH
B(Q017F : 3738 BB T 9 5H1E6.8%A A
R¥ - 23%AEITN09%ABILIER) -

R2018F12A31H  AEEMRITREMEER
22953 E BT P AIEIT5%UARE
25%ABTTEHE (20174 1 2,31458 88T ' &
R H95.6%IAARMENA4%IABTLEHE) » %5
BEFRNBESISEEBTLIIAAEE 2 FRIE
W R2,237.8EEB T AEERT(2017F : 2
AEEIE) - K(ii)A#2,237.8F 88T M57.58
BB RIABERMEERZESFEREE (20174 -
BE2214588 8L 0100.08 850D BIAE
EFERZENEMFE) - R2018F12A318 -
AEBMABAZEAHEEHATER2,746.18
BAET-

AEBRATZUAARBEEE MM TAARE K
ABITAER o AEB G ER B E QIR
BHEXBHIMNE KB o

R2018F12A318 ' AKBERBEBEBFEAR
1,167.9B BB 7T (20174 : 1,258 1B B T) °
BRBELE(UASENERFERUAERZR
BN EFEAE) B49.7% (20179 1 48.7%) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, certain assets of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$62.8 million
were pledged as collateral for borrowings of the Group
(2017: the Group did not pledge any assets as collateral
for its borrowings).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2017: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately
370 employees, the majority of whom were based in
the Mainland China. Employee benefit expenses for the
year were HK$161.2 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre
and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy
and performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration
policies are largely in line with industry practices,
and are formulated on the basis of performance and
experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonuses and
other merit payments are linked with the performance
of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to
optimise performance.

BEEFNWE DN

EERH

R2018F12H831H  A&EBERAARE2. 8B &5
THETEECEAAEBEENEMFSR (2017
FAEEVELEEERFEANEE) -

EXRAERHEERE

R2018F12A31H ' AEERBERTEENRE
WEELEEMEKNHRETZERNFELE (2017
&) o PA2018F12A31H  REB I EEM
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERRE

The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
its accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2018. The following summarises the
corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consists of two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The roles
of the chairman of the Board are segregated from
the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the
Group. The managing director is delegated with
the authority and responsibility for managing the
Group’s business, and the implementation of the
Group's strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2018, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were not held by the same
individual. As at 31 December 2018, the position
of the chairman of the Board and the managing
director were held separately by Mr. Dong Haoran
and Mr. Liu Hongzhou, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

ARABHEBERKFHEEERER  LH
TEMRE B BY BEEMAFIE AR
ARERTERER 2EEBHERXIMER
REESH ETRA ([ ETREND) s 14prE 2z &
BRI (TREREATA) BT RAN
FH

RKABREZE2018F12A31HIEFEAH B BT
EMRBIME14FE 2 S EERFRIARE AT
& e T AR RAMBEEERTER -

BEEg

R2018F12A31H EECHMEATESE -
MEFRTEER LB ILIERITESAK - &
EeTFUREEHKEIREPES DN TER
f EFEEIFAEEBVEREETSMEE -
UNEAREBARBER ESHRCEERETH
EAEBEERZEEREEAEEMNER  AE
PREBBBELHIZ - REIE2018F12A318 IEFE
N BEEeIEMNEEESENBUIREH—
ARIBEHAE - A2018%F12A310 - EE2xXFR
BEEREENBA D BB EEAR T ERBIMNE
T - 2 EBEME D BB NoR B3 M &
Ef -EFE(DREEESEIRFNESHLE) M
WEAMI - A% RiEskEMERNER -
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All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration
of the directors are determined with reference to their
duties, responsibilities, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives are
delegated to the managing director. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to carry out
daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. In January 2019, the
Board approved and adopted the Company’s board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity within the Board.
Appointment of directors will be based on merit that
complements and expands the skills and experience
of the Board, and after due regard to factors which
include but is not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, and professional experience
towards achieving diversity within the Board. The Board
will monitor and review the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to directors on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’'s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should be present at that
Board meeting. All minutes of Board and Board
committee meetings are kept by the company secretary
of the Company for record with sufficient details of
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or Board committee(s), including any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by any director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
The attendance record of the directors at the general
meeting(s), Board and Board committee meetings held
in 2018 are set out on page 28 of this annual report.
Besides providing sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, all directors have disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of the offices held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, and updated the Company
on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance on directors’ liabilities have been
in force to protect the directors from their risk exposure
arising from the business of the Group.
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The directors acknowledge the need to continue
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
for making contributions to the Company. The
participation by individual directors in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company in 2018 is set out in the
table below.
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Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

B SHEIPR
EERE HEEN
EHER WHE EDH

Non-executive directors kHTES
Dong Haoran EER

Liu Jinmei 21
Executive directors BITES
Jiang Juncheng ZEK

Liu Hongzhou 24T M

Ma Yuchuan* BEI*

Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITEE

Chan Kay Cheung PRIE S
Qiu Hongsheng Ef A
Chow Chan Lum AR

v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4
v 4

*  Resigned in January 2018

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant training.

*  R20184F 14 BFHF
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2018, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum, and
an executive director Mr. Jiang Juncheng. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and the website of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and
the senior management, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives,
to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, responsible for identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to appointment or re-appointment
of directors, succession planning for directors and
assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.
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In January 2019, the Board approved and adopted the
Company’s nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as director of the Company. A
summary of the nomination criteria of the Nomination
Policy is set out below:

(1) ability to contribute to the effective carrying out
by the Board of its responsibilities;

(2) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity
in all its aspects, which includes but is not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

(3) independence of the candidate; and
(4) commitment to devote sufficient time.

The Board will review the Nomination Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will give
due regard to nomination criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held four meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are
set out on page 28 of this annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HKS$nil up
to HK$1,000,000, and from HK$1,000,001 up to
HK$1,500,000 were two and two respectively. Details
of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out on pages 181 to 182 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung,
Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung is the chairman of the audit
committee. The members have extensive experience in
financial matters. The terms of reference of the audit
committee, which described its authority and duties,
is available on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the website of the Company.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and oversees
and conducts an annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and ensures the external auditor are
independent and the effectiveness of the audit process.
The audit committee examines all matters relating
to the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group, auditing functions, internal controls, risk
management and financial reporting. External auditor
and the directors are invited to attend the committee
meetings as and when necessary. The audit committee
meets at least twice a year with the external auditor.
The audit committee also serves as a channel of
communication between the Board and the external
auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of the committee
members at these meetings are set out on page 28
of this annual report. The work performed by the
audit committee during the year included reviewing
the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
The audit committee has also reviewed the audit plan
and approach of the external auditor and monitored
the progress and results of the audit regularly. The
audit committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

HZE2018F12A31H EFE  BELZAHMNTZ
71,000,000/ 7T + % 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000
BTHECZSREEAES (TERIEES) Z A8
BIA2AR2A © #HE2018FE12A31BILEEES
HMAOFBHNAFEREI1SIHEEE182H -

—RBIUIFNTES - DRI RRE

?EE&@K@HMEEQW RIE S
%EZ%%*Z?E@ 7o BRBAEMEBEHEIE
EREEERR BERLEOREREE (HH
HEHBENET)ENERETEHMAXZMBERA
BHUE R AR A B RUEA e

ERZESRAEHYBERETE LR LE
= I[iTKE.H e 18 N N R BE AT R AR 2 AW RE
BETERRFERN - A RERINEZEBEN R
BYMBZEFNERE - %V;FiQAZEFﬁﬁ
F'%AZ]S%@% WE’J uﬂ?ﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂl RMEE - FiZ
T g% ~W*I3E*T Afiﬁﬁﬁﬁ&E#ﬁEﬁ%ﬂo
TEER - 9|\Hﬂ?§iﬁfﬁ&§$—ﬁ&5& ey =
EE - %ﬁéEAHEEEM\\H?@%(EWE%HE/J\
Ve %T?;FE thiEEESE T HEIIMNEZE
EWZF‘?% EORERZS

BMBITMNEE - S ERZ
YA ARFERE28EHN ° ]

= EBEEMAEEEZE2017
F12B31B I FE 2 & E% ?éﬁﬂk#&%&@
F2018F6A30B IE NEA 2 REFEZLLE P H
SRR © %*z;&AWE%WI\E@%%&EﬂiE@%
REtE Rk UEHERBZITIENER MG
% EREE ORI ASERBREE RAELEE

? Z)d[ﬁlﬁ"

20 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2018



INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is responsible
for carrying out analysis and independent appraisal
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The tasks of
the department include:

o reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities and
internal controls;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all business
and support units and subsidiaries on a regular
basis; and

e  special reviews of areas of concern identified by
the management or the audit committee.

The internal audit department reports directly to the
audit committee and has direct access to the Board
through the chairman of the audit committee. The
internal audit department may directly report to the
audit committee without consulting the management.

The internal audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and financial
units of the Group. The internal audit department also
conducted reviews of major projects and contracts
as well as areas of concern, if any, identified by the
management.

Concerns which have been reported by the internal
audit department were monitored regularly by the
management and by the audit committee until
corrective measures have been implemented.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below:

S BS % B A

REE2018F12A31HIEFE » sLARQ =) M HH
B AR ERENEZMIEEZRE R AR T INE
ZHAENMBREOT

2018
20184
HK$'000
FET
Audit services EZ R 2,573
Non-audit services (included tax matters, IEEZRY (BREMREEIE
review and other reporting services) HB R EH MR HRARTE) 437
3,010
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT EERIE:T

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement
from the auditor about its responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 79 to 85 of this annual report. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, the Board had selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, had made
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing the key risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
enhancement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
enhancement when necessary, with a view to improve
the effectiveness of such systems.

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited, an
independent advisory firm, to conduct an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2018. The scope of review included the

internal control systems of the Group at the entity
level, as well as key business processes of its principal
subsidiary, Huada Electronics, covering key controls

such as financial, operational and compliance controls
of the Group. The review results have been reported
to the audit committee and the Board. The Board
is satisfied that these systems were effective and
adequate throughout the year ended 31 December
2018. In this regard, to enhance the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has begun to implement the
recommendations put forward by Tricor Services
Limited.
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The audit committee has also held discussion with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has established and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with established procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
registered shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the
Company to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such special general
meeting shall be held within two months from the date
of deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or
not less than 100 registered shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.
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The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.

EMERERATEERTARBBAUIMNA
ARBEZECREERATRAMBETRREZE LA
ARBAKEHEBELERRERER Z2RAE AT
EECHAITWEFRERNDAGMREE - ik A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda * sEAARR A A A MERER - B
ABHRERBMZER  ZEREREHERIT
AN NEXE BN EREAMIBR - BIZE
RERBITAADR—EXE - EMEXERE
HABRRBAERESBAIBREHRAZE—R
BRABRRBAFARE  BIZEREREEHREFHE
WEE RUEMS TIREEREHSIEE-

EMERVALAAECKRERE  LAHHBN
RFEEAMME - R2AER - RARRREZLZ
XHAK  EHMERLBARTABRNELRKRE -
EHEREERNTEERFR  ARARARMER
EREFEHERRBRAABRRAG Z2ER
WiRBEAENREERERMMA S RLBRE LR
AERBALEHEHEELRRERIZRLE - &
2 HEEEERBERER/TNERRF  BHEKRR
BEMEER MR RBRGTEMNARR
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’'s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the website of
the Company. There was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’'s attendance at general
meetings, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2018 are set out in the table below:

SR HE R

TRENBZEZN2018FAHERRARE - EF
EhEFZREBEERIFHE

Meetings attended/held
HERE/€ERE
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee HMK General
Note Board** 8 o meetings
Hiz# Egxgw ZE® ZEg BRRAE
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Dong Haoran EE 6/6* e
Liu Jinmei 251G 5/5 02
Executive directors HITES
Jiang Juncheng ZEHK 5/5 33 212
Liu Hongzhou 2IETM 5/5 22
Ma Yuchuan FE 1 0/1 0/1 0/0
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Chan Kay Cheung RS 6/6 22 4/4 212
Qiu Hongsheng ilpeide 6/6 22 4/4* 22
Chow Chan Lum R 6/6 22 4/4 22
* Chairman * FE

** Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without executive directors and
management present.

Note:

1. Resigned in January 2018

o AP REFERRACHEFELRERFNTEEN
EEEESHERNTELTHHTEE(BEBLIH
TTEE) -

7. R2018F 1.7 B (F
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1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

1.1 Corporate social responsibility
philosophy

The Group has all along been insisting on the
development of information industry and safeguarding
of information safety as its own responsibility. By
adhering to the “be innovative in electronics of China,
lead the information in the future” responsibility
philosophy, and incorporating it into the Group’s
strategic and operational practice, the Group strives
to maximise the comprehensive benefits of economy,
environment and society, and has always been a good
corporate citizen.

The Company has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2018.

1.2 Participation of stakeholders and
analysis of material issues

The communication with and the participation
of stakeholders are essential components of the
sustainable development of enterprises. The Group
operates principally in the PRC. The key stakeholders of
the Group are its shareholders, customers, employees,
government and regulatory authorities, business
partners, communities and the public as well as the
ecological environment. Through communication
with its stakeholders, the Group understands their
expectations and advices, so as to provide guidelines
for the Group’s operational decision-making and make
more positive contributions to sustain the industrial and
social development.

tEHESTHRE
1. tEHESETEE
1.1 tEHESETESR

AEBIRKBRUBRREEERXRHEES LR
ROE RATBFHEET - 5/R1E %XJE’J
BEEER URERAXASEBRLREEEER
LHEREE RE H8GEeRaERAML X
RALERMFEEAR -

KATBEREZE2018F12A31HILFEET
HFAIMTER27PTEIREE - L@ N EJATRES IS FTE
B[ TESFRLEREE 53 -

1.2 NEHEELTSEREEZEND

MEBEEEXED - AKREXTRELMAETEH

AEBENRERANEEBETBEBERR BE §
T ﬁﬁ&W”%% BIERH HERARR

E%%% ﬂﬁﬂ ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ =)
Hi C RAEBEZERRIEHRES  RE
%&EATﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁEFWME@

HASEHARINBERNE2ER ORI FHERR
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In 2018, the Group analysed the materiality of various 20185 » AREHNMAZHELRERERBLES
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") issues AR BEAEBEZEETENEBR  2W&E
with reference to peer practice and expert opinions, RE A2 RER(ESG)ZEMNES M » WEA
in accordance with the Group's actual operations MEPEHZEEZRBETEHOE -

circumstances, and gave detailed response to these
material issues in this report.

ESG issues Materiality analysis Corresponding section
ESGHE EEMSM HESH

Emissions Exhaust and The Group is principally engaged in the |5.1 Green operations
B greenhouse gas | business of design of security smart 51 #BEEE

emissions card chips and does not involve in

BER OB E manufacturing. Apart from greenhouse

AN gases and non-hazardous wastes (such

Water and land  |@s waste paper) produced in offices, 5.1 Green operations

pollutions the Group does not produce significant |5 1 4@ &iE

M7k &+ Hb e eSS exhaust emissions, water and land
pollutions and hazardous wastes during
its operation.
AEENTEEBRBERRLZEERZ
Rt EEBBRIEBFIPREE - BRAE
REARMARMELENBEZEZEY (W0

Hazardous and
non-hazardous
waste generation
BEERBEEEEYD

5.1 Green operations
5.1 #EEE

IR BALS) 5N AREREENN L EEE
BERBERBNPEN - ARk HEBETIA K&
BEREZMOBER -
Use of resources Use of energy The Group consumes energy (including |5.1 Green operations
BiRER EREds electricity, natural gas, fuel consumed by |5.1 4% & &
Use of water vehicles for office use), water resources |51 Green operations
resources and packaging materials used in finished |5 1 4@ xis
K& B products during its operation. Managing

the use of resources can help to reduce
the Group’s operating costs as well as
the Group’s impact on the environment.
AEELZEREGHEHARR(BRE
RAR - WARENFEB)  KERA KR
K mERNBEME - EREAEER
B E AR B L ERA - [t A B
R REEHRTNTE -
Environment and natural resources In the process of chip manufacturing,|5.2 Green products
BIERRARERE suppliers who work with the Group will|5.2 4% E &

exert impacts on the environment and
natural resources.
EOREERETRAEESENMHER
SHERBERRABERELETE -

Use of packaging
materials

BEMEHER

5.1 Green operations
51 #E2E
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Materiality analysis

EEMIN

Corresponding section

Employment and
labour practices

Employment

(=

Employees are an asset to the Group and
a driving force for the Group to innovate

3.1

Employment and
employee benefits

EEREIER persistently. Therefore, the rights and 3.1 BEEKEIEF
Health and safety benefits, health and safety, training and |3 3 Occupational
BEREZSD development of employees are all key health and safety
areas of work of the Group regarding 33 BEREREE
P corporate social responsibility. .
doveogment | ATEEATEMORE - msaxem>* (000
e ROUTEAITORE D « Bt - ATOME | 0 o0
i HRER  BRERER  BIIRBERAK il
SERCEMGEETEMNEETI o
Labour standards | Child labour and forced labour are 3.1 Employment and
2 TR prohibited by the laws and regulations of employee benefits
the place where the Group operates. 3.1 EEREIER
ZIEFERETIALRGIS T ARERRE
BEHERERHENR -
Supply chain Management of |The management of supply chain 4.1 Supply chain
management environmental not only can help the Group to avoid management
ftrEEEE and social risks of |environmental and social risks, but is also|4.1 & §# & 12

the supply chain
HEERE LS
[ Bz B I

crucial to the Group’s product quality.
HERNEEMEREDRBASELER
EhtghHNER  bHAEENER

HEEWEE -

HEEFEARNKARAT 2018FFHR 31



Corporate Social Responsibility Report

TEHEEERSE

ESG issues Materiality analysis Corresponding section
ESGEE EEMSM HEZH
Product Quality and safety | Given the type of business the Group 2.1 Information safety
responsibility of products and |operates, information safety protection, |2.1 8% %
EmEE services effective quality management and 2.2 Quality
MRS M) S £ | customer service are the foundation for management
E achieving sustainable operation of the [2.2 BE%®
Group. 2.4 Customer service
ERAEBNEBRED  REFELE - (24 BEERK
BRHNEEEERBEERBRASEER
QEST <3 g:0F- 3/
Intellectual The daily operation of the Group involves|2.3 Intellectual
property the use of intellectual properties owned property protection
management by customers, suppliers or the Group. 23 HABERERE
MR EREER Therefore, to protect the intellectual
properties of the Group and business
partners, and to avoid infringement of
others’ intellectual properties are all key
areas of work of the Group regarding
corporate social responsibility.
AEENRTELETESRIEREE
HEMIAEE B FHEBENNBERE - A
bt REBHREEBHNMBEE R
R By LRI AR MBEE R AEE N
¥HEREETENEEZIIE-
Information The daily operation of the Group involves|2.4 Customer service
safety and privacy | confidential information of some of its |2.4 EAZ RS
protection of customers and business partners.
customers REENHEEEFEP LRI ERT R
BEERLE2LE | AERHNKRERER -
LR &
Anti-corruption Anti-corruption Anti-corruption is a key safeguard for the|4.2 Anti-corruption
R&ES practices healthy and sustainable development of [4.2 KE&)5
RESER the Group.
RESERNEEEGREE FAIHEERN
BEERE -
Community Community The Group mainly operates in the 6. Community
investment welfare Mainland China. Servicing the needs and investment
HERE R A development of the local communities |6. #HE&RE

have considerable impacts on the
Group's development.
AEEFELEMHREREANM  SEE
wtRHAFEERERUAEENEREE —

= 22 4

Ews °
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2. PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group reviews regularly the management systems
regarding the safety, advertisement, labels and privacies
of its products and services by adhering to the “make
innovations through reform and cherish integrity
towards the world” operation philosophy, and with
reference to local laws and regulations relevant to
our products and services such as the Standardisation
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Intellectual
Property Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China as well as the industrial policies, and continues
to enhance the corresponding information safety
management system, product quality control system,
intellectual property management system and customer
service system. In 2018, there was no litigation against
the Group or violation of laws and regulations by the
Group in relation to the safety, advertisement, labels
and privacies of its products and services.

2.1 Information safety

As the practitioner and facilitator of the smart card
chips design industry in the PRC, the Group strives
for the maintenance of information safety as its own
responsibility, concerns with the laws and regulations
regarding information safety management such as the
Requirements for the Management of Safety Production
of Electronic Information Industry, the Safety Protection
of Computer Information System Regulation of the
People’s Republic of China, the Network Security Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations for
the Management of Commercial Cryptographic, etc.,
focuses on independent research and development
of security smart card chips while building a safe
operating environment, strives to be the cornerstone
of China’s information technology modernisation and
information safety.

The Group established an information safety
management system by adhering to the Group's
information safety policy of “catering for safety
demand through system protection; striving for
sustainable development through the involvement
of all staff”, with reference to the requirements
such as the Information Technology — Security
Technology — Information Safety Management System
— Requirements (ISO/IEC 27001), the Information
Technology — Security Technology — Practical Rules for
Information Safety Management (ISO/IEC 27002), etc.

TEHEEERSE

2. EMEERHK

AEBFATNMBEEN  HEXRTINOLEHES
2E(PEARRNBRELER) - (PEARKM
BRBERSE) (PEARANMBERLEER)
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FEEER EnHEEERR NIBERERE
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TEHEEERSE

J Development of security chip

The Group focuses on the business of design of security
smart card chips. As the practitioner and facilitator
of the smart card chips technology in the PRC, the
Group owns the globally advanced and domestic
leading security attack and defense technology,
covering the protection technology at levels such
as the system level, algorithm level, circuit level and
layout level, with technologies such as side channel
attack, malfunction-injection attack and physical attack
technologies, and forming a set of comprehensive
safety management system.

A number of high-end security control chips of the
Group was accredited with security certification such as
the domestic EAL4+ Certificate, international CCEAL5+
Certificate (the highest security certification level that
can be achieved currently for domestic smart card
products), EMVCo Certificate, etc., which lead the
domestic security chip technology, attain international
level, and demonstrate China’s “Smart Card Chips”
capability.

In 2018, various products of the Group were certified,
including the UnionPay Chip Security Certification, the
Certificate of the Commercial Password Products, the
IT Product Information Security Certification, etc. In
addition, Huada Electronics has won the “2017 China’s
most influential loT security enterprise award of the
China loT Industry Application Alliance”.

e  Safe operating environment

While focusing on the development of smart card chips
with high security and high reliability, the Group also
pays attention to physical environment security, that is,
protecting computer network equipment and facilities
from being destroyed by accidents such as earthquakes,
floods, as well as human acts. The Group established
a series of physical security management system, such
as the Procedures for the Physical Security Control, the
Measures for the Management of Security Facilities,
the Control Code for Central Control Room, the
Measures for the Management of Security Officer, etc.,
for protecting the design and development of security
smart card chips.

AEEFEINERERERZETHRAER - EH
TEEERCARMHNEREMESE - AEH
BFEUREE BARENZE2HHRM  BE
A BER  EBRRNRBERFD ERAM -
EREAEERE MEIARBRYERESE
i ERT TENL2EEEXR -

AEBZHSIHEDEH GBS BEEALL+
BIMXCCEALS+ (BRI A B e REMFATEEETIA
BEERRER) REMVCoSE L2 BB RE - 3
BREALE A FM - EREERKE - BRIBPE

[BIE -

2018 F AREEEEZNERARE @ BIEHREE RN
FERLZE2RE HATBERUREEZ UK
TERERLZERESE - k4N TERXKEFH2018
FRESHPEYBNEXERBEBENI2017
FRREFENYHBELTEEE] -
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In 2018, in order to further consolidate and improve
information safety performance, maintain the effective
operation of the information safety management
system, Huada Electronics established the information
safety target or surveillance measurement project
index and the ancillary management requirements;
coordinated external suppliers with a view to optimising
information safety management, and launched
information safety publicity activities among all
employees to promote their awareness on information
safety.

o Development of chips with independent
intellectual property rights

As the core of electronic information industry,
integrated circuit is playing an increasingly important
role in aspects such as promoting economic
development and social progress, protecting
information safety, etc. With information safety
rising gradually to become a national strategy, the
Group will continue to follow the pace of national
development, adhere to the mission of safeguarding
national information safety, focus on the development
of electronic information industry, continue to launch
domestic-made smart card chips with independent
intellectual property rights, and keep on accumulating
its core technologies.

While strengthening its internal management, the
Group develops diversified products so as to provide
better professional smart cards and embedded
security chips and related solutions. At the same
time, the Group also promotes its domestic-made
smart card chips which are widely used in sectors
such as financial payment, social security, resident
health, public transportation, telecommunication and
mobile payment, network authentication, identity
authentication, Internet of Things, etc.

TEHEEERSE
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B3R AN HER R EELEEEIE
THESHE2EETNEELEEAEFLY
RAZBEELEEH -

o HIHBMERTFFHZE

SREBERETFELEFTNRL  EHEBLE
BR HEESRREEEREETEERRHE
BEREMA - BEEELE2ET L RERE
B AREFIRNETFEEEXER #EHLY
BXMBEENBESERTH  THERZO
B o

AEEEMEANTEENERL  ARSHLEE
o MEHONREHEXREERERAALZETER
RAERBERATER ARSI ORERBESH - &
ZERAREBINMN HeRE BERER oK
R BEEBHXN  BERE - FHOBEH R
YR A S A

FEETEANKAERAA 2018FFHK 35



Corporate Social Responsibility Report

TEHEEERSE

J Promoting the application of cloud-based smart
locks and securing information safety of loT

In recent years, as the smart door lock market in China
continues to develop, to resolve a number of safety
requirements including loT door lock information
reporting, and near and remote unlocking are the core
of promoting the application of cloud-based smart
locks.

In 2018, Huada Electronics participated in the whole
process of development of the safety smart door lock
solution with Zhejiang Telecommunication NB (one of
the two loT door lock solutions prominently prevailing
in the market). Leverage on its experience in security
application in multiple industries accumulated over
the years, Huada Electronics has injected new safety
philosophy and ideas to the integrated smart door
lock solutions which greatly safeguard the information
safety between smart door lock and cloud as well as
the operational safety of near and remote unlocking.

In addition, Huada Electronics was invited to participate
in the second working meeting of Building and
Residential Community Digitalisation Technology
Application in Smart Door Lock Safety (Guidelines) held
by National Technical Committee on Standardisation
of Digitalisation of Intelligent Building and Residential
Community in Shenzhen and was a core party in
compiling such Guidelines to jointly explore the smart
door lock safety technology and take forward the
regularisation of smart door lock industry, enhance the
safety and convenience of the smart door lock.

o HPERZHEARREYHEEELE
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2.2 Quality management
J Quality management system

The integrated circuits design operation of the Group
comprises the design of smart card chips and the
development of application system. The Group is not
directly involved in aspects such as manufacturing,
assembling, transportation, etc., albeit adhering to the
tenet of “zero defect” in provision of products and
services to customers as well as the quality policy of
“catering for customers demand through continuous
innovation; striving for customers’ satisfaction
through the involvement of all staff”. The Group
advocates comprehensive quality management with the
involvement of all staffs, striving to control and improve
continuously the entire aspects of production of its
products.

The Group established a product quality management
system covering aspects such as product research
and development, outsourcing of production and
processing and quality inspection, in accordance with
the requirements of 1SO9001 Quality Management
System, so as to meet the customers’ demands for
diversification, personalisation and refinement through
systematic management. In 2018, Huada Electronics
was accredited with the upgrade version of 1SO9001
(2015) certification.

In 2018, Huada Electronics strengthened its quality
control on various fronts, including research and
development projects quality assurance, online
quality monitoring of outsourcing of production and
processing, product quality inspection, two-party audit
of supplier quality management system, key product
quality assurance onsite audit, etc. It also established
the QMS Risk Management and Control Procedures,
enhanced quality risk control on aspects such as
outsourcing of production and processing, research
and development, etc.; and integrated the launching of
the training for employees focusing on the standards
and requirements of quality management system with
the activities of the "Quality Month", of which the
participation rate reached 70%.

TEHEEERSE
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As to the management of quality risks of suppliers, the
Group required key suppliers to carry out failure mode
and effects analysis management on manufacturing
and processing procedures of the related products
and equipments to identify risks and implement risk
treatment measures, so as to further ensure the quality
of the products provided by the suppliers. In 2018,
Huada Electronics carried out the two-party audit on
the quality management system of its two key suppliers
to ensure the upgrade of these two suppliers' 1SO9001
certificate to the new standard (2015 version), and
onsite audit on them to monitor the quality of the
production and processing of key products.

For sub-standard products found during operation,
the Group will deal with the sub-standard products in
accordance with the requirements of the Sub-standard
Product Control Procedures, while arrangements will be
made for the responsible departments to analyse the
reason for the generation of sub-standard products,
formulate rectification and preventive measures, and be
responsible to follow up on their implementation and
the effectiveness of these measures. In 2018, there was
no occurrence of any recall of the Group’s products
sold or delivered due to safety and health concerns.

For the management of product labels, the Group
established labelling requirements for information such
as product model number, product lot number, product
guantity, time of processing, product origin, etc. with
respect to the packaging specifications for various
products such as IC card, smart card, etc.

J Quality inspection procedures

The Group conducted quality inspection on products
such as wafers, modules, cards, circuits, etc, that
are developed independently with procurement
and processing outsourced in accordance with the
requirements in respect of the quality inspection
operational process imposed by its product quality
control system. Inspections are performed by
professional inspectors in accordance with the
inspection specifications and practice guidelines, and
by using professional inspection equipment, so as to
avoid the delivery of sub-standard products. In addition,
the professional high-precision instruments used for
quality inspection are calibrated regularly to ensure the
accuracy of the inspection result.
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2.3 Intellectual property protection

The Group respects intellectual properties and regulates
the usage of intellectual properties from customers
and third parties. It also keeps all its business partners’
product’s technical information strictly confidential.
Moreover, the Group concerns about the protection of
its own intellectual properties, and issued the Measures
for the Management of Intellectual Properties for the
first time in 2003 and continues to improve and amend
it.

The Measures for the Management of Intellectual
Properties explicitly defines the responsibilities and
working procedures for all departments and personnel,
and states the detail requirements regarding the
evaluation, searching, retrieval and analysis of relevant
intellectual properties during the technology research
and development process, contract filing management,
intellectual properties ownership, protection and
application of intellectual properties, training and
incentive. The Measures for the Management of
Intellectual Properties facilitates the formation of
innovation mechanism, and creates a regulated sound
environment with rules and precedents to follow for
the developing of intellectual properties.

In 2018, the Group further elaborated the details of
internal application for intellectual properties, clearly
set out ways through the information system for the
employees to submit to the Group their applications for
intellectual properties, while beefing up the contents
with intellectual property information enquiries and
intellectual property data sharing, etc.

The Group attaches importance to original innovation
and collective innovative capabilities, scientific discovery
and technology invention, and through incentive
measures encourage employees to actively apply for
intellectual properties and publish academic papers,
etc. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has obtained
471 patents.

TEHEEERSE
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2.4 Customer service

J Customer service system

The Group adheres to the “users first and customers
foremost” philosophy and builds the global customer
service system to provide more convenient and better
quality service to customers. In addition, the Group has
site engineer teams with strong technical knowledge
to provide immediate professional technical services
to customers to solve their technical problems before,
during and after a purchase.

Customer Complaint Procedures are established by
the Group to assist customers to solve any issues
encountered after products are sold and during
usage, and any feedback from customers will be used
for on-going enhancement of service and product
quality. In addition, depending on the issue raised
by the customer, the Group will organise respective
specialists from the failure analysis team, product
development and design team, production and
processing professional technical team, sales service
team, technical support team and project management
team to work together to analyse and identify the
fundamental causes of the issue, formulate rectifying
and precautionary measures, ensure the effectiveness
of such measures, and keep track of the customer’s
subsequent usage in the long run.

As for customer information safety and privacy
protection, the Group established the Measures
for the Management of Technology Confidentiality
Agreement and the Requirements for the Management
of Confidentiality, and employees are required to keep
trade secrets of the Group and customers in strict
confidence, so as to ensure information confidentiality
for both sides during business interaction between the
Group and customers.
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o Customer satisfaction survey

The Group attaches importance to customer
satisfaction survey and through the survey identifies key
factors affecting the satisfaction of customers so as to
enhance the quality of its services and products. The
Group sends out customer satisfaction questionnaires
to customers each year to understand customer’s
satisfaction, opinion and suggestions on its products’
or projects’ design quality, service quality, and pace
and capability in handling issues arose, and Customer
Satisfaction Surveillances and Measurements Evaluation
Report will be prepared summarising feedbacks from
customers and passed to respective departments for
on-going improvement of service standards.

Statistics on product and customer service key performance

TEHEEERSE

B EmE R E

AEBERBEEWEERE  BAASEEYE
BEREENERAE EMAERBEERERE
E-AEEEFEHRNETENBEZTMEEH
EX rEEFBREHERLAHEBNRITEE

ERREEREEHEBRERERST

Indicators

Number of customer complaints received
Percentage of customer complaints dealt with (%)
Customer satisfaction (%)

REEE  MEEBRERENSETENRES

B WERBEREEZ  UTHERE(EEREER

BRAEFERE)  BERRBHLEERIN -
FEIRF RIS KF -

indicators

2018 2017

BE 20185 & 20175 E

BEREFEM 132 112

BERFEIE E (%) 100 100

BEEHMEE (%) 94.74 95.95
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3. EMPLOYEES

The Group reviews and enhances regularly on the
management systems regarding its employees’ rights,
remuneration and benefits, recruitment and promotion,
training and development, working environment and
occupational health, child labour and forced labour
by adhering to the “responsibility orientated, attaches
importance to competent and rewards linked with
performance” talent philosophy, and with reference to
the industrial policies as well as operational location’s
laws and regulations relevant to employment such as
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Women’s Rights and Interests Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Regulations on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees. In 2018, there was
no litigation against the Group or violation of laws and
regulations by the Group in relation to employment,
occupational health and safety, child labour and forced
labour.

3.1 Employment and employee benefits
o Employment and employees’ rights

The Group attaches importance to attracting and
fostering of talents, provides protection to the equal
rights of its employees on aspects such as terms of
employment, training, promotion and remuneration,
and ensures no discrimination against any person on
grounds such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family conditions, nationality and religion. In
addition, the Group resolutely prohibits child labour
and all forced labour, so as to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations.

The Group established the Administrative Management
Systems, which clearly set out, among others, the
related management work for the recruitment and
dismissal of employees. The Group also established
the Code for Employees, which covers area such
as the standards of daily behaviour, attendance
management, management of sick leave and other
leave, performance management, remuneration and
benefits, employee training, etc.
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The Group encourages employees to introduce talents
with competitiveness, and incorporates the respective
incentive system in the Employee Handbook. Employees
introduce talents according to the demands announced
by the Group periodically, so as to assist the Group in

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

T\/
K

fhe

identifying talents who will benefit its development,
enhance the strength of the Group and enlarge its

talent pool.

TEHEEERSE

AEEZBMETHEBAERFNNOAL - HEE
BHERENCETFM) - BBEREMATH
BETREFTKREBAT  KMALEETEK
REBROAS  BRAKEESN  BAAT K

Overview of the Employment and Employee's Rights System

EEREIRZHELRE

Recruitment and dismissal

Work hours and leave system

Remuneration and benefits

RN EE

TRRAKRER

FMEER

v Recruitment: New
employees are recruited
under the principle of
"openness, equality,
competition and on the basis
of merit".

VIERE RRBIAK FF &5
¥ EBEINRABESERAN
BT

v'"Work hours: Work hours in
compliance with operational
location’s laws and regulations.

VIR TEREREEEMERE
REYER o

v'Remuneration: The salary of
each position is determined with
reference to market wage level
and such amount will be adjusted
accordingly after considering the
position value and contribution.
VEM  2EZMEKTFERELLIE
R B & & el (i (B 1B [ B Bk ¥ 5 B &
TRENAE -

v Dismissal: Employees are
dismissed in accordance with
the related requirements
in the Code for Employees
and in compliance with
operational location’s laws
and regulations.

v REE IR (E IT<rAI) 8RR
EHRE - WHTEEEMERE
REVEK -

v Overtime work: Employees are
entitled to pay for overtime work
or time-off in lieu. Overtime work
compensation is in compliance with
operational location’s laws and
regulations.

VI BT ZH ML E AR
R - IR ER A S EMARE
REVEK -

v Social insurance: Various social
insurances are purchased for all
employees in accordance with
operational location’s laws and
regulations.

VHERRE  BRREEMEAREEAR
PREIAMIELERR

v/ Leave system: Paid annual leave,
marriage leave, bereavement leave,
maternity leave, sick leave, etc., are
provided pursuant to operational
location’s laws and regulations.

VIR EEFEARR - BR - BR &
BR RBREREEMERERIE
fit o

v Benefits: Employees are provided
with various benefits such as
annual body checks, supplementary
medical insurance, etc. in
accordance with the actual situation
of the Group.

VEH - #BEAEEEREBERARETL
REZERMN WFEEREER
EERRE -
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Statistics on employment key performance indicators

EIEAEEREARERGT

2018 2017
Indicators B 2018FE 20175 E
Number of employees BT A 368 365
By gender: Male =R - S 225 224
Female pegid 143 141
By type of employment: Permanent ZERED B E) & Rl 358 349
Secondment 25 75 Ik 4E 1 10 16
By age group: > 50 RERHER 50%% A 19 18
30 to 50 30&E505% 294 286
< 30 305 AT 55 61
By geographical region: Mainland China  f&ZH#[& : FEAMET 365 360
Overseas’ BINE T 3 5
Employee turnover rate (%) BT RAR (%) 15 31
By gender: Male ZMHR - S 16 34
Female pegid 13 25
By age group: > 50 BEBwAER 508 A 5 14
30 to 50 30&505% 15 29
< 30 305 AT 23 42
By geographical region: Mainland China  1&#[& : FEIARE T 15 31
Overseas’ BINE T 25 0
Note: et -
1. Including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. 1. 2EE RFAKAE-

J Employee communication and caring

An effective employee communication is important to

2
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=
=

TE8REE

I TEBYRRNE CXBEREWE

S|

the decision-making and enterprise development. The
Group strives to establish an open working culture, and
strengthen the communication between employees and
management. It also sets up various communication
channels to understand employees’ opinions, so
as to create a frank and an open communication
atmosphere.

EEMER TR T;ﬂfjw%?_x ELAE?‘
MER %ﬁiﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ’]xﬁ
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The Group cares and supports every employee who is
in need. Through proactively carrying out multi-level
and multi-channel employee caring activities, the Group
ensures paying visit for those employees suffered from
injuries and sickness, attending employees’ wedding
ceremony and funeral ceremony and helping employees
who are in difficulties. In addition, the Group carries
out consolatory activities on public holiday strictly
in accordance with the relevant requirement of the
China Federation of Trade Unions. Huada Electronics
established the Measures for the Management of Trade
Union Expenditure, stating the detail requirements on
expenditure such as consolation money and support for
employees who are in difficulties. As for the caring for
female employees, Huada Electronics has set up nursing
rooms, and subsidised the vaccination for female
employees in 2018.

Summary of employee activities in 2018

< "Science City, Blooming Youth” - A theme-based
photography competition

< "Brisk Walking at Olympic Forest Park” — A brisk
walking activities for employees

< "Working hand in hand, heart to heart” — 2018
Huada Electronics family day activities

< Huada Electronics participated in the table tennis
competition for enterprises in Beijing organised by
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC")

< An employee flower arrangement activities
organised by Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit
Co., Ltd.

TEHEEERSE
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3.2 Training and development
J Employee training

Facilitating employees’ growth provides impetus for
corporate development. The Group's employee training
divided into three levels, corporate level, departmental
level and individual level. The corporate level trainings
focus mainly on cross-departmental and internal
all-purpose training, such as new employee training,
quality and safety requirements training. Departmental
level trainings focus mainly on enhancing knowledge
and skills in specific departmental professional areas.
Trainings for individuals act as a useful supplement to
the above two.

Upon completion of a 12 months services, every
employee is entitled to an individual training allowance
of up to RMB3,000 per person per year starting from
the 13th month onwards. Such allowance can be used
for trainings as designated by the Group, or can be
used in relation to employee’s job-related trainings at
his/her own choice subject to prior approval by the
Group.

Huada Electronics established the Training System,
which covers area such as types of training and
effectiveness assessment, training implementation,
internal training instructors, etc., as well as defines
the four major categories, namely system, and rules
and regulations, experience exchanges, knowledge
and skills, and cultural awareness to be covered in the
annual training programme.

In 2018, the Group launched the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council rule of law training activities, which
involves legal risk management in public capital
and social capital cooperation business, compliance
management seminars, etc. The Group also arranged
employees to participate in training activities such as
CEC young cadre training class (management class),
etc. Huada Electronics promoted training activities
by launching the “working hand in hand, heart to
heart” training activities for all its employees as well
as launching legal related training for staff of the sale
centres, the production centres and other department
with such needs.

3.2 FIRERE

o BT
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Statistics on employees’ training key performance indicators

STRIHRRAREARERGT

2018 2017
Indicators BE 20185 & 20175
Employees’ training coverage rate (%) ETHEIBER (%) 96 81
By gender: Male ZMHRl: BM 95 80
Female ol 97 83
By grade:  Senior management BE&R: ARERE 100 91
Middle-management RRERE 100 76
General TE 95 82
Employees’ average number of hours of B T &% AHEZHFI

training per person per year SEANiES: 23 11
By gender: Male ZMRl - BM 26 10
Female e 21 11
By grade:  Senior management BA&R: ARERE 21 —
Middle-management RRERE 32 -
General =R 22 -

e Occupational development o IpEHE

The Group implements a qualification management
system and establishes an occupational development
channel to provide an important basis for employee’s
promotion and salary increment. The Group implements
dual channel development path for the technicians that
accounts over 60% of the Group’s total headcount.
The technicians are divided into six grades, those
who have reached grade four can select either the
management line or the technical line. In the technical
line, they can become technical expert, system
engineer, etc., and in the management line, they can
enter into the administrative management or project
management field.

AEEERTRERERGE BUBEER
BB RETER RFRERHEBKRE - HRNE
AEEORA LN RMEETETERBER
BRAE - BATR D RN BIHAIR AR B E IR
EARIMAR - RMRBERIBZMER - RS TIEA
E EEKAUTEATREENAEERHRE -
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3.3 Occupational health and safety
J Production safety management

The Group has all along been insisting on the
“safety first, focus on prevention and manage
comprehensively” safety philosophy. The Group
managed its production safety with reference to the
principle of the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and by focusing on tackling the
potential security risks, and aiming at preventing and
avoiding the occurrence of material safety incidents.

In 2018, under the supervision and guidance of the
production safety management team in strict adherence
to the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Requirements for the Management of
Safety Production of Electronic Information Industry,
Huada Electronics focused on tackling safety risks and
launched activities such as the “production safety
month” activities, monthly and important public holiday
extensive production safety inspections, elevators
emergency escape drill, monthly safety publicity, etc.,
so as to strengthen production safety ground works.

33 BE¥REREZE
o ZRUEEE

AEBRRBRZ2F— AHA/E Ha8
BINREES  W(REARRNBZ2EEL)
ARA - DORBZ 2R B REER - LAR KB
EXZEERBELERBRREREAEERET(F -

2018F  EAEFHELEEEET R/ NVEMEEE
BT LERRITC(REAREMBALZ 2 EEE)
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TREZERMAELE2EESEEEY  BELTLZE
HEEEMTE-

Statistics on employees’ occupational health and safety key performance indicators

ETHXERERZZHARARERIERGRT

2018 2017
Indicators BEZ 2018 & 20174
Number of work-related fatalities A T EBR ML T A ER 0 0
Number of work-related injuries TEBERELERE 0 1

Note: The work-related injury was classified as the
lowest degree of disability in accordance
with the relevant standard.

J Quality working environment

Quality working environment has a direct impact on the
physical and mental health and efficiency of employees.
Based on the “people-orientated” philosophy, the
Group is committed to provide and maintain a warm,
comfortable, healthy and safe working environment for
its employees. Huada Electronics has set up a nursery
room, a library and a recreation area in its office, so
as to create a quality office arena. The Company has
equipped safety packs in its offices, clearly set out
the requirements for safe use of electrical appliances,
installed new ventilation system for new office in
response to the air quality conditions in Beijing, etc. In
addition, the Group purchased traffic safety insurance
for its employees (such as insurance for employee
travelling on planes, cars, etc.) to provide coverage for
safe travel.
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4. COMPLIANCE OPERATION

The Group considers the compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of an enterprise. The
Group reviews and enhances regularly the management
systems regarding its supply chain management,
risk management and anti-commercial bribery with
reference to the operational location’s, laws and
regulations relevant to the compliance operation such
as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China, as well as the industrial policies. In 2018,
there were no occurrence of any confirmed corruption
incident related to the Group or its employees, nor
were there any public legal proceedings against the
Group or its employees.

4.1 Supply chain management
o Management and control procedures on suppliers

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
design of integrated circuit chips, our major suppliers
are integrated circuit chips manufacturers. The effective
management on suppliers during the course of the
Group’s development can help the Group to reduce its
costs and cooperation risk, improve the quality of its
products and services, and build up a quality brand.
As such, the Group establishes the Management
and Control Procedures on Suppliers setting out
the requirement for the selection, evaluation and
management for production suppliers. In particular, it
sets out the detail guiding principles for aspects such
as selection of suppliers, approval, daily management,
subsequent evaluation, etc., so as to ensure the
long-term and stable provision of reliable products and
services by the suppliers.

TEHEEERSE
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In addition, the Group establishes the Procurement
and Outsourcing Control Procedures, setting out
the requirements for the procedures and rules for
managing the production procurement and the
outsourcing. The procedures provide the definitions
and corresponding operational requirements for aspects
such as requirement planning, order formation and
approval, procurement implementation, quality control,
in-stock settlement, etc., so as to ensure the materials
and products procured and outsourced comply with
the requirements. The Group requires the suppliers
to provide true and valid, and compliance with the
requirements of laws and regulations qualification
documents, and upon the request of the customers
requires certain suppliers to provide RoHS report.

J Periodic review on suppliers

The Group chooses to cooperate with suppliers which
comply with the requirements of the PRC laws and
regulations in aspects such as environmental and
social assessment. These suppliers also comply with
the Group’s Key Factors of Inspection for Supplier
Assessment Form regarding information safety
management system and quality management system.
In addition, the Group may require suppliers to
provide relevant certificates during supplier admission
stage such as environmental management system
certifications, production permits, discharge permits,
etc. upon the request of the customers.

The Group carries out regular review on its approved
suppliers each year. The review on the approved
suppliers is based on criteria such as the availability of
the supply of goods in previous year, the requirement
planning for the coming year, etc. Based on the results
of the review, the Group will adjust the eligibility
and grading of its suppliers accordingly and compile
a revised list of approved suppliers for the next year,
while ad hoc two-party audits will also be conducted on
suppliers during daily management. In the event that
an approved supplier has no business dealing with the
Group for the past 3 consecutive years, the Group will
cancel the qualification of such supplier. In 2018, the
Group conducted assessment on 32 suppliers, with a
passing rate of 100%.

o AEEHIEACRBEINBEGIRZF) R
ETEERRBRINBEERENRY - ZEF
HEKREE  FTEEAREL  KBER - E8
2 ARABEESIREM T E&E NERRE
BRE - WREREBMIMEHOMERERNERE
MEXR - AREZERKHERREHEEAY AT
BERRERBAENEEXMF  URBEEEFE
2 SKAA R B B I HROHS ¥R & ©

o HREBTHTE

AEEEEBESENHERAERREAMEERZTE
BREEPERERERNER YATFEAREE(H
HRHERERRR)FNEELEEREBERANEE
EERBRNAE - BN AEEKRRETZN
EHEREARDZRERHIEHABNREE
BREEARE LEMFAE HSHUIEREE
=,

AEBBFEHEARBEREEBETTE - A5E
BEEF—FEHEBEN UWRARKR—FEFT Kt
2% HEREEHETTE - BEFEL
HEREHER SRETAE  ERFT—FEN
ARHEENRE  BRERPESYHEREN
TEHN - FEZ MRS EEEEEIFE
REBESBEBAR  EARHEFERBE®
EUE °2018F » AEBEYN2REEEETESZ -
HERZZBIBEI00% °
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Statistics on supply chain management key performance indicators

HEREZEHABAREARERRT

2018 2017

Indicators EE 2018 E 2017 E
Total number of suppliers HEFES (X) 65 59
By geographical region R R

Mainland China A B A 3 62 57

Overseas’ I 3 2
Note: Miat -
1. Including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. 1. EEA - RMRAE-
4.2 Anti-corruption 42 RES
e Anti-corruption management system s KRESFEEHE
The Group adheres to the “law abiding and REBEBFEIFEE  EHEBAINRRES
establishing creditability, advocating honesty and BIF[EAFE - #IHUR  EBHAEXINFE
nuturing people” integrity philosophy, adheres to the BREERRIER AKBEZETBEEZHE
policy of “treating both symptoms and root causes, FKEERERREERRNEXRES)  ARSE
applying punishment and prevention for impeachments XHHERRERRREZRETIIFAEEBEMT -
and putting focuses on precautions” and consolidated
the building of clean party code of conduct and
governance. The party committee of the Group signed
the Obligation Certificate for Comprehensive and
Strict Administration of the Party and Integrity with
its subordinate party branches, clarifying that its party
branches are to assume the bulk of the responsibility
in the building of the party’s code of conduct and
integrity.
In order to regulate the gift accepting arrangement BTHEAREEBITHNERITR  HEBR]
during business interactions on behalf of the Group, RREENEZIRLAEN HABIHEAROIR
eradicate the possibility of violating laws and disciplines, DIEEMMER  AEER2016FEMALHITT
and strengthen self-restraint and awareness of (BmLEHHRE (H17)) - LR2018FE /M =&
preventing corruption, the Group announced and —RIAKRHEEIDE) RIRRBAT P E
implemented the Requirements on Handing Over Ek - RHETIRRRESHE -

of Gifts Collected (Provisional) in 2016, and issued
the Implementation Measures for “significant issue,
key official appointment and removal, significant
project investment and large value fund utilisation”
Decision-making System in 2018, and strengthen
the education on anti-corruption among employees
pursuant to the requirements of the government
authorities.
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J Complaint and whistle blowing management

In order to regulate the management of complaints
and whistle blowing reporting, the Group establishes
the Measures for the Management of Complaints and
Whistle Blowing. Employees of the Group and outsider
can report, in anonymity, corporate or individual
improprieties matters relating to corruption, including
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, during
the course of operation to either the internal audit
department or the audit committee of the Company
through letter, telephone, internet and facsimile.

Staff will be designated
or a project team
will be established to investigate
and obtain evidence on the complaint.
THE AL FIE)
HTRIEN - AEEGE -

~

Whistle blowing reports are registered
and filed once received.
SR R R AE R
Y ENERER -

o RFREBHEE

RTHERFREBEREETIE  FEEBHER
AR BERERME) AEBALET - SMEBA
EXAEZREBEN BF EBE BEFER
BRAMBEZIFREZRZEGRREFHEA
REBETFERES  BHEBE ¥ BEFR
HRENIEEH °

A special meeting will be convened

to consider the details of the whistle blowing report
and investigation results and to come up

with a solution.
BHREEEH  TEER
BHERHER -

(3) O
> &

The investigation and collection of evidence

should be completed within the prescribed

time limit and reported to the management
after reaching a preliminary conclusion.

&

A feedback is made

to the informer.
[REBERA ©

FERRTEHIR ARk &
HE IR - SHT R -
WAEEREER -

5. ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to reducing the possible
adverse impact of our operations on the environment.
The Group reviews regularly on the environmental
protection management measures with reference to
operational location’s laws and regulations relevant to
environment such as the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the industrial
policies, and encourages employees to take responsible
actions on the environment and regularly provides
employees with relevant training. In 2018, there was no
occurrence of any environmental pollution incident, nor
was there any litigation against the Group or violation
of laws and regulations by the Group in relation to
environmental protection that was material to the
Group.

5. RIB

AEBB N RARZER EHIRITEKHN T F
2 Z2E(PEARAVNBEREREER) SRR
BHEBNESEMEEERARITERR - HRERE
BEBETES RS  ZBHEIHRERNAE
ENTR - ERARE TREMREI - AEER
20185 W AR B AMEMIRFISREM - THRA RIR
BRERBLHAREBERZENTRARERX
EREM -
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5.1 Green operations

The Group has identified the major areas of environmental
impacts that may arise in the course of operations and
formulated relevant management measures.

e Use of resources and emission management

For daily operation, the Group incorporated the
resources-conservation behaviors such as saving water
and saving energy by employees into the Code on the
Daily Conduct of Employees, requiring them to turn
off the lights when leaving work, turn off the water
tap readily, have the computer under standby mode
temporarily when not in use, turn off the monitor
readily, turn off the electric power supply when leaving
the office, etc. At the same time, the Group took the
initiative to convey the basic philosophy of saving water
to its employees by posting gentle reminders. The water
taps will be repaired in a timely manner if it is found
damaged, so as to reduce water resource wastage.
As the Group’s consumption of water resource mainly
arises from the operation of its offices, and currently
the Group’s water source is municipal water supply, it is
not facing any problem and risk in accessing sufficient
water source. In 2018, Huada Electronics arranged
cleaning and insulation pipe inspection for the variable
refrigerant volume (“VRV") air conditioners in its
office building, enhancing their work efficiencies while
reducing energy consumption.

The Group also establishes the OA system to implement
paperless office. Through the OA system, the receiving
and sending of official documents, circulation of
documents, and sharing of departmental documents
are all carried out internally, so as to achieve paperless
operation of office process. On the premise of
protecting printing privacy, the Group implements
double-sided printing, so as to reuse waste paper. In
addition, the Group advocates bring-your-own-cup at
internal meetings, so as to reduce the use of disposable
paper cups.

Product packaging materials of the Group consists of
cartons, black boxes, iron rings, stainless steel racks,
etc. The Group re-uses these black boxes, iron rings and
stainless steel racks to the extent that the hygiene of such
item is guaranteed, so as to reduce resources wastage.

TEHEEERSE

5.1 BBEE

AREHZEBARTARERNRRTENTR
FEETHR  WHIE THEENE RS

o EBERFIARIKYEE

EBERZ2ETH AKESETHKAESTER
MOTRIINCE T REITRAR) » BRE T
BAERE  BETRIKEESR  ERERTHENE
AGHAE  BEFEMBRE  NIARAE
FAEAERE - AR AEBEIEBRMARRERR
2RETEEHNAKNENES - MBI K
SREERRERE  RPKERRE - REE K
BRABREIZRENPALE BRI AKER
TR AR A3 T R K - A T B SR BUE AR KR 7T T Y
RN - 20185 » FAETHRAKERD
VRV(Z2RSEIREZMA) ZRETER - RA
BHEE - o HE THEREK  [FEER -

AEBNZIOARBHITEM YL ERHE
VERAXE  XHRE - PG RAFEET
HITBBOARMBER P NIRIZEAULIRIE - #1T
CEEATERR  ERETHRALNAIRETEEHN
FBERMR - WS AEBEABEZIERB HK
OB — I RIEEMENER o

AEENERBEYIBZEEANE a3 @R
RAFHBERE - HP - HRER - #HERRTH
MR AEEEREREFRNBIT #1716
RER > BMAPBRRE -
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Apart from greenhouse gases and non-hazardous wastes
produced in the office (such as waste paper), the Group
did not generate significant exhaust gas emissions, water
and land pollutions, hazardous waste emissions and
other environmental impacts in the course of operations.
The Group reduces greenhouse gas emissions through
saving electricity. The greenhouse gas emissions per
square meter of floor area remained the same as 2017.
Non-hazardous wastes are processed by property
management companies. The Group is unable to
quantify its production and reduces paper use and waste
paper produced through building a paperless office.

° Incorporating environmental protection awareness

Through launching environmental protection education
activities, the Group incorporates environmental
protection awareness into the minds of employees,
thus facilitating their practising of environmental
protection philosophy during daily work and life. Earth
Hour is a global energy saving activity of World Wide
Fund for Nature in response to the global climate
change. In 2018, the trade union of Huada Electronics
organised the “Earth Hour 2018: Activate my 60+ life”
environmental protection thematic activities. Activities
included environmental protection knowledge training,
environmental protection commitments, tasting of
environmentally-friendly organic products, etc., which
publicised environmental protection among employees
and helped them understand the lifestyle of 60+ and
live a green life.

BREEREBUNRBARSESENEEZEZEY (0
BEREF)IN REBREEHETEELBEN
EERBERN - MK R LA BES - BEREEYAHE
BAREMIRIBEE - REBRBEERRAE
RESR BFEARKEEEBEER GRS
2017 - BEEEMHIRHYWESIERRE
B AEEEEGTEELAE  AEFAEERL
WD BRI R R ESL -

o REREBEHABA

AEEBBHERRERUE LY  BREZHBMA
BEINM  (REEIEREIEREETRITER
RED M —/\RBEEREAESSEEEIX
RIFECFTERN—BE2RERIREES - 2018
FoEREFTESRIT[2018FER—/N\EF :
R B60+4EE | RIFETBES  FBBRIEREA
*j)Lc'EﬁjEj IRIRAEGE DDEE&1%7§$%§DD#E§§T§
MEISETREES  EE TEMGO+EE
R BITREREE -

Statistics on environment key performance indicators

RERRERANERL

Units 2018 2017
Indicators bi{ By 20185 20175
Total greenhouse gas emissions’ ERERBHNE ton of CO, equivalent 1,528.75 1,307.85
W CO,28
* Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission o HENRZEREBHNE ton of CO, equivalent 29.89 49.24
W CO,2 &
¢ Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission ¢ HEVAEREBHME ton of CO, equivalent 1,498.86 1,258.61
1 CO,& EE
Greenhouse gas emissions per BYAAEAEROEERE ton of CO equwalent/m2 0.05 0.05
square meter of floor area B 5( & CO Zi?i/-l_-ﬁﬁ‘
Total electricity consumption BEE Jlg/lwhi 1,868.55 1,550.85
KEEF
Electricity consumption per BEAAEHERNEEE Kwh/m? 65.12 54.46
square meter of floor area TRE/FhHXK
Total water consumption BIEKE m3 13,813 25,487
VY
Water consumption per BERREAERNEKE m3/m? 0.47 0.89
square meter of floor area VAR ERK
Total fuel consumption? @R E? Li#e 11,042.34 18,185.74
Volume of paper used WARME ton 3.20 3.80
in offices ]
Volume of packaging material used for ZKRFEANBEMNHE ton 16 16
finished goods i
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Notes:

1. The total greenhouse gas emission was the sum of Scope 1
and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions. The Scope 1 and Scope
2 greenhouse gas emissions were calculated according to the
automobile fuel consumption data and electricity consumption
data respectively, together with the relevant emission factors.

2. Total fuel consumption represents the fuel consumption of the
Group's vehicles for office use.

5.2 Green products

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
design of security smart card chips. Overall speaking,
despite the chips only account for a relatively small
portion of the technological products, chips are the
core to drive the operation of products, and good
design can effectively reduce the impacts on the
environment during the whole product life cycle.

~

During design stage of chips,
the Group’s impacts on the
environment include carbon
emission, use of energy and
water resources, etc. The Group
implements a green office,
which reduces carbon emission
and resource consumption.
REBIED R REOERT
FEBDRMEIR - LAREEIR &
IKERENER » NEEHETT
e RDIRBER R EIR

\7% %% © j

The Group’s products include smart card chips,
modules, circuits and cards. All products meet
the requirements of Restricting the Use of Certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Directive (“RoHS"). In particular, the
smart card chips, modules and circuits also meet the
requirements of Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH") standards.

TEHEEERSE

1. EAZRBANEANE 2RZRBEREIN - 6

B 2RERBHNREDHREABFRHBE  REE
BB ERATE R EETAE -

2. HRHERTEERLAENFEME o

5.2 #BEM

AEENETLEXBREERRLETH 2RET -
CHREMREMBRBRSELE ] - BEHEE
BEMEFENZL - RIFORETA MR ER
EELwBRARENTE -

The impacts on the environment
are mainly produced by suppliers
who work with the Group. The
Group requires suppliers to
provide relevant certifications
according to customers’
demands to manage their
impacts on the environment.
TEREAEESENHER
FIEANRETE - NEEIR
BETER - ERHERRMH
RFEEEFER - e
\Fﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬁ%tﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ © )

AEBERBEBRELH - E B - FfhH -
FTEERHRE(ERBRHEE FERKERE
ARELEEERDHIES)([RoHS]) B3k » EfAK
B ERARRE(EE2RAEM - 771 -
PEREFIPR %) (TREACH]) IZ#EZE 5k -
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6. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group cares about community development, and
currently focuses on three areas: poverty alleviation, care
for children with special needs and voluntary services.

In 2018, the Group drove poverty regions economic
development by purchasing agricultural products
from relevant poverty regions through CEC, such
as the purchase of fruits from the impoverished
county Langzhong, Sichuan as mid-autumn treats for
employees.

Huada Electronics has been paying attention to the
development of Beijing Guangai School since 2009.
It insists on participating in charitable fund raising
events and provides donations for Beijing Guangai
School. Over the years, Huada Electronics’ employees
have been providing the needed cash and material
voluntarily, so as to extend their care to Beijing
Guangai School. Every year, Huada Electronics’
employees visit Beijing Guangai School to care for
the children voluntarily and interact with them. The
objectives of Beijing Guangai School is to save the
orphans, help homeless children to return home and
go to school, and provide psychosocial support for
the left-behind children, help them to establish a
correct concept of values and outlook on life, and
keep a positive and progressive spirit to contribute to
the society in the future. In 2018, according to the
school’s feedback on its actual needs and difficulties,
Huada Electronics sent consolatory supplies such as
drugs, cleaning and disinfecting supplies, learning
tools, tableware, etc. to the school, and used clothing
donation activities was also organised, through which
employees donated large quantity of clothing for
children aged 3 to 12 to Beijing Guangai School.

The Group also actively encourages employees to
participate in volunteering services. In 2018, Huada
Electronics launched the forest conservation activities
themed “conserve ecology, share blue sky, embrace
forest”, which aimed at improving the awareness on
ecology culture among employees through painting
tree trunks white and cofferdam maintenance work at
Hanshigiao Wetland Nature Reserve.

6. HEKRE

AEERIHERER B TEEPR=FEE2
5 KB BAEBKREZEUNREERS -

AREER2018FBBARATHETFTEEEEN
KEMERBEEZELNIE AM)IE8REE
HETRBKEEAPMOBTEAMRS KD
BNHR M EEER -

EFAETH2009FES » REBIIERATER
MBR BROEESERETADERBNBE -
ZER BTHRETHEREBY  SAEBRX
BENEE TEFERAETAEERETH
B WEZFFETELED - IR AERRE
EHMBAMR  EMRRRERBALZ  AWHET
RE RPREBETOEREEHE - EUIEHEDN
BES ALD ®REEHELESOBERELR - &
KA EIELER © 2018F - EXEFRERA
REMBEREFRLLEE  SBRE LT Y 5
WESRm 2EAm EASHAYE YA
BETEXBRUEE  RILRAEERBEAE
HE3-NRZEFENRY °

AEBENERZBE THREEHRSE LS - EX
FEFR2018FHRRTFERIEERER HEE
X BRRAMRINHRAEEES SERBEER
BEMARRERMEAETEE  EERET
E RSB TARNARSE -

Statistics on community investment key performance indicator

HERENEAFAREARERST

2018 2017
Indicator BE 20185 & 20175 F
Number of employees participated in BITEREH2HAE 9 10

voluntary services
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7. ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the corporate social responsibility report
issued by the Company. It addresses the actions taken
and the achievement made by the Group in respect
of sustainable development regarding economic,
environment, and social issues. This report has been
prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

7.1 Scope of the report

Organisational scope: this report covers China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”), and its subsidiaries, CEC Huada Electronic
Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) and Shanghai
Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd, (collectively, the
“Group”). The scope of this report has not changed
since the last reporting period.

Reporting period: from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018.

7.2 Data

Data disclosed in this report were extracted from the
Group’s original records in day-to-day operation or
financial reports.

7.3 Reliability assurance

The board of director of the Company guarantees
the contents of this report do not contain any false
information, misleading statement or material omission.

TEHEEERSE

7. BRAE®RE

ABERARBEMNEELEEERS KB
AEEELE RESMENAFHEERTER
BT RZERNRE - AREANBEMER S
FIBRABTIERNCGRE 8 MERAREED
RBERERE -

7.1 REEHEH

MHEEE: ARESARENATBEFRESFEAR
REBRRAB(ART]) » MWEREKEBRFILRH
BEAEFTRIFTARETRARNTEREF K L
BENEXNERERETARGHEIAER]) -
AFENREHREER F—F8F5F L -

B EAR - 20181 A1H E2018FE12A831H «

7.2 EiEEH A
WERNBBERERNEBERETHRAB TS
B8R4 o

7.3 A EMHRE

ARREERHRENANTEITRE - FEEE
MRADH, - AR R S AR o
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Haoran, aged 54, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Dong graduated from Tsinghua University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Semiconductor Devices
and Physics, and is a professor level senior engineer.
Mr. Dong is the deputy chairman and the general
manager of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd (“Huada
Semiconductor”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, the chairman of GTA Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd, the chairman of Shanghai Belling Corp., Ltd
(“Shanghai Belling”) (a company with its shares listing
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and an executive
director of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited. Mr. Dong joined CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”)
in 1988 and was the executive director of Huada
Electronics. Mr. Dong possesses extensive knowledge
and experience in the integrated circuit design industry.
Mr. Dong was appointed director of the Company in
February 2015.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 49. Ms. Liu graduated from Jilin
University and holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese
Language and obtained a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from Beijing Institute of Technology.
Ms. Liu is the assistant general manageress of Huada
Semiconductor, a director of Shanghai Belling (a
company with its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange), the chairperson of Solantro Semiconductor
Corp. and a director of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd.
Ms. Liu was the marketing strategy manageress of
BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and the marketing
manageress of China Huaxu Golden Card Co., Ltd.
Ms. Liu joined Huada Electronics in 2005 and was the
marketing manageress of Huada Electronics. Ms. Liu
was appointed director of the Company in January
2018.

FHITES

EHREE 45 EESEFE -ELEEER
BEABYERERHHYBEEINGELS
i WABRLREHETEM ELXERETARR
CEBRBRRERYEEERAR ([EX¥EE])
BlEERNAKIE S FEREYEREEREAAE
ER-EBBEERMHBERAA(TLEERSE] (%
RAIRMNEBBAFAR SRR LM ESK
N EBrEFERAERNHAERARNITES -
EREMIBSFMAL R EEREFLAER
EERRI([EREFNUEHEEREFHITE
E EAEASERNERIFTTEAEZAZNE
EBy o BHRER2015F2AEEZEAERRAE

v
[

i
)
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BIFM L - 4957 - BIM T EEREMAKEF L
RUBBETEM - PRI RETIARENEISE
ERELTEMN - BT REERFLEEBIBLAL
B FERE(ZATROR EEBESFRSAA
f ™) E= -« Solantro Semiconductor Corp.¥F
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EI12 o B L2018 F 1 AEZERARRES -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Jian, aged 43, is the Deputy Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
and a Master’s degree of Business Administration from
East China Normal University. Mr. Yu is a Certified
Public Accountant in the PRC. Mr. Yu is the chief
accountant of Huada Semiconductor, a member of
the supervisory committee of GTA Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd, and a member of the supervisory committee of
Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation
Limited. Mr. Yu was the assistant financial controller
of Shanghai Guojia Industrial Co., Ltd, the assistant
general manager and the financial controller of
Shanghai Datang Mobile Communications Equipment
Co., Ltd, and the financial controller and the deputy
general manager of Shanghai Pudong Software
Park Co., Ltd. Mr. Yu was appointed director of the
Company in March 2019.

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 56, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Business and Administration,
and is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much
of his career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director
of the Asset Management Department of CEC, an
executive director and the deputy general manager
of Winfair Development Limited, a divisional director
of the Treasury Division of the Investment Banking
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager
of China Electronics Technology Development
Corporation, the deputy general manager of the Asset
Management Department of CEC, the deputy general
manager of the Company, a director of the General
Office of CEC, a director of Shenzhen SED Industry Co.,
Ltd (a company with its shares listing on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange), and the managing director of
Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was
appointed director of the Company in October 2013.

EENREREEAEHE

HITES

BMBEE 4358 EESRER - EXRAERER
ERMMBASTNEEELRS8LBARTIHER
BB EXEATREMESETA - BEER
TEALERBESHA LSREBEEEERA
AIEEE REGAEFEREERMNERARE
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DRI IEREE R B BAEIE - EEER2019F3 A
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EENREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 72. Mr. Chan is the vice
chairman of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited.
Mr. Chan was an executive director and the deputy
chief executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited.
Mr. Chan joined The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965
and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of
the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member of
The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and
an international senior economic consultant of The
People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non-executive director of Chu
Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited,
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food
Investment Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development
Limited (all being companies with their shares listing
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan was
appointed director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 54. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree
in Management Science and Engineering; and is a
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
M&A Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and a
fund management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is an executive
director and the general manager of China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd and a
visiting professor of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute
of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China as
an economic analyst for a number of years. Mr. Qiu
joined China Consultants of Advisory and Finance
Management Co., Ltd, a company directly managed
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and
focuses on management consulting and corporation
restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth
of professional knowledge and practical experiences in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, strategic
integration, meticulous management, etc. Mr. Qiu
is also an independent director of China National
Software & Service Co., Ltd, AVIC Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd, GRINM Advanced Materials Co., Ltd (all being
companies with their shares listing on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange), and Henan Kedi Dairy Co., Ltd (a
company with its shares listing on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed director of the
Company in November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 68. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in China Law by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is the precedent partner
of Wong Brothers & Co, Certified Public Accountants,
and a member of the Foreign Experts Consultative
Committee on China Independent Auditing Standards
of the PRC Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chow served on a
number of committees of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, including as the deputy
chairman of the Auditing & Assurance Standards
Committee, and a member of the Investigation Panel
and the Professional Standards Monitoring Committee,
and as president of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chow serves as an honorary advisor and
committee member of various social bodies, and
has been a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province,
the PRC from 1997 to 2012. Mr. Chow is also
an independent non-executive director of Maoye
International Holdings Limited, and has been an
independent non-executive director of China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited from 2002 to 2012
and Pak Tak International Limited from 2002 to 2014
(all being Hong Kong Main Board listed companies).
Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC in 2013 and the Honorary Fellowship
of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts in
October 2017. Mr. Chow was appointed director of the
Company in June 2015
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wang Qiuju, aged 52, is the financial controller
of the Company. Ms. Wang graduated from the
School of Economics of Xiamen University and holds
a Postgraduate degree in Finance and is a senior
accountant. Ms. Wang is a director of CEOVU (a
company with its shares listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange). Ms. Wang was head of the Finance
Department of Shenzhen SED Electronics Corp., head of
the Finance Department, financial controller and chief
accountant of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Co., Ltd
and the general manager of the Finance Department of
China Electronics International Information Service Co.,
Ltd. Ms. Wang joined the Company in March 2015.

Mr. Zhou Jiansuo, aged 45, is the executive deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhou graduated
from Harbin Institute of Technology and holds a
Bachelor’'s degree in Automatic Control, received a
Master's degree in Navigation Guidance and Control
and a Doctorate degree in Control Theory and Control
Engineering, and is a professor level senior engineer.
Mr. Zhou was a Postdoctoral Fellow at Bern University
of Applied Sciences on Mircoelectronics. Mr. Zhou
joined Huada Electronics in 2002, was the deputy
general manager of Huada Electronics and was in
charge of research and development of technology,
project management, major projects, etc. Mr. Zhou
possesses extensive theoretical knowledge and practical
experiences in the integrated circuit design industry and
password application area. Mr. Zhou was appointed
executive deputy general manager of the Company in
March 2018.

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 57, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool,
United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 86 of
this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: HK3.0 cents), amounting to a total
dividend of HK$40,597,000. The dividend is subject to
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 24 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
90 of this annual report and Note 33 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Report of the Directors
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$413,259,000 (2017:
HK$405,464,000).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company implements a dividend policy which
aims to provide stable dividends to shareholders. The
Company will take into account, among others, the
following factors when forming the proposals for
dividend distribution:

(a) the financial performance of the Group; and

(b)  the future funding requirements of the Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 184 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance for the year and
the outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed”Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 13 and on
pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets. The
Company will strive to ensure that the remuneration
level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remuneration
of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.
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In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success
and growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group
has an extensive sales network across the PRC and
to manage such network requires a close working
relationship with our customers directly and through
distributors, agents and other business partners.
The Group will continue to strengthen its customer
service to provide superior quality service to the users,
and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the industry. The
Group’s continuous effort to build trust and strengthen
mutually beneficial cooperation with its customers and
suppliers has facilitated to foster long-term cooperation
relationships with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance of
the Group’s businesses depend on the growth of the
information technology sector in the PRC, particularly
the electronic information technology sector. Although
the information technology sector is demonstrating a
growing trend in the past which is in part supported by
favourable government policies, any negative trend in
the information technology sector or other restrictive
policies may materially and adversely affect the
business, financial condition and results of operation of
the Group.

The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive
with relatively short product cycles, and is subject
to policies of the government. The Group’s results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips sector in the PRC. The Group
may face challenges in implementing its business
strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals may be
adversely affected by various factors, some of which
are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

As one of the industrial leaders in the design of
integrated circuit chips sector in the PRC, the
Company is committed to operating its business in
an environmentally-friendly manner. Although most
of the Group’s businesses are not subject to any
environmental protection rules and restrictions, the
Board believes that operating the Group’s businesses
in an environmentally-friendly manner is crucial to
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and requirements, the Group
offers periodical trainings to its key personnel. As a
result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has complied with the “comply or
explain”provisions set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2018. The Company has prepared an
environmental, social and governance report with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide, and is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Social Responsibility Report” on pages 29
to 57 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of a business and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is also
subject to the rules and requirements under the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board, during
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Dong Haoran (Chairman)
Liu Jinmei

(appointed on 15 January 2018)

Executive Directors
Yu Jian (Deputy Chairman)
(appointed as director and Deputy Chairman on
5 March 2019)
Liu Hongzhou (Managing Director)
Ma Yuchuan
(resigned on 15 January 2018)
Jiang Juncheng
(resigned on 5 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng

Chow Chan Lum

Mr. Yu Jian was appointed as director by the Board
on 5 March 2019. Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the
bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Yu Jian will hold office
only until the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Liu Hongzhou
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2018, Mr. Dong Haoran, a non-executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board,
had personal interest (long position) in 4,672,420 shares
of the Company (representing 0.23% of the issued share
capital of the Company), Mr. Jiang Juncheng, an executive
director of the Company and the Deputy Chairman
of the Board, had personal interest (long position) in
1,139,420 shares of the Company (representing 0.06%
of the issued share capital of the Company) and Ms. Liu
Jinmei, a non-executive director of the Company, had
personal interest (long position) in 197,250 shares of the
Company (representing 0.01% of the issued share capital
of the Company). Save as disclosed herein, none of the
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year had the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

On 9 January 2019, the agreement for the purchase
of Block C of China Electronics Information Security
Technology Research and Development Foundation in
the southern area of Future and Science Technology
City, Beiqgijia, Changping District, Beijing, the PRC
(the “Property”) by Huada Electronics from China
Information Security Research Institute Co., Ltd. (“CIS
Research Institute”) and its supplemental agreement
were terminated in accordance with its terms and
conditions. Huada Electronics received a refund of
RMB258,407,601 on 16 January 2019 from CIS
Research Institute and relinquished its right to use the
Property and its right to earn a profit from the Property
to CIS Research Institute.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain of the related party transactions as disclosed
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
also fall under the definition of “continuing connected

transactions”

within the meaning of the Listing

Rules. These transactions have complied with the
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are summarised as

RiIEEMRRBNERE @ HFEMBHRRMEENE
BONETHBALIRSTEBRERERS - %
EXFHUECEBTETRAUBUATME ZRE -
ETRERHABTEMRANBREFEEH
ME - BREFEHSALT

follows:
Transaction
amount
in 2018
R20184%
RE&HE
Note HK$'000
Type of transaction R85 HaE FTERT
Sale of products to the CEC Group MAEEFEEKXNEAFRHEEER ii(a) 167,559
Purchase of raw materials and modules from R RE TS EKE A7 RE ii(b) 590,804
the CEC Group, provision of products EMRRER RHPEHETEE
processing, testing and assembling services X E A RIEHERMT -
by the CEC Group B am B 5 % 3 2 AR 75
Property management fee paid to the CEC WEP BEEFEEXE fii 8,605
Group NAZNYEERE
Rental received from the CEC Group MABEEFEBEKE RARKWRES iv 2,531
Rental paid to the CEC Group MAEEFEBEKERARZNES % 2,360
Fees and commissions for financial services AR BEE FEE/KE -
paid to the CEC Group RAZNVBRB2FEELRAS
Notes: Htaz
(i) China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”, together with its (i) hHEFZEEXEFEAREAA([H EH] @

(if)
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subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 26 June 2015, the Company entered into a business services
agreement (the “2015-2018 Business Services Agreement”)
with CEC to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and their respective proposed caps of
the transactions thereunder for the period commencing from
5 February 2016 to 30 June 2018. Pursuant to the 2015-2018
Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides products
processing, testing and assembling services to the Group, while
the Group purchases raw materials, modules, software and
equipment from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC
Group.

The 2015-2018 Business Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 19 November
2015, details of which are set out in the circular dated 27
October 2015.

7

EJEBT#%QE[EP%E?L%ERE’AETD%ZK’ Az
BRBCR - PRI EARRMAARR ZBEAL -

o
Hek

(i)  M2015F6H268 ' ARAHFHEFEBFILAER
Btk ([2015-201842 & R e l) - AR E20165F2
ASAZE2018F6A30A LMz ERBFEBERISH 2
B RESBETRSEZE LR - 81#2015-20184%
GRBHE TREFERKE AR MAERIEHEER
NI K@ RFERS MAEERTFRETFEE

EXEAT%KE%FMM AR - M RREMRTREET

% ﬁjz jfﬁ%@uu°

2015-20184R & R 1 KRB 5 LIRE BB AR
B IR HA2015F 11 198 RITH R E £ 5 KAHtt
- BRAFIBEEN BEA2015F10827H 2@ EHA
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(iii)

(iv)

On 25 April 2018, in order to continue the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the 2015-2018
Business Services Agreement and to facilitate the Group's
operation upon the expiration of the 2015-2018 Business
Services Agreement on 30 June 2018, the Company entered
into a business services agreement (the “2018 Business Services
Agreement”) with CEC to regulate the terms of the proposed
continuing connected transactions and their respective
proposed caps of the transactions thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. Pursuant to
the 2018 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials, modules,
software and equipment from the CEC Group and sells
products to the CEC Group.

The 2018 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 28 June 2018,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 8 June 2018.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

(b)  Raw materials, modules, software and equipment
purchased from the CEC Group are for the Group's
research and development of integrated circuit cards,
smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to
the Group.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC Rida Property
Management Co., Ltd (“CEC Rida”), a subsidiary of CEC,
entered into a master property management agreement (the
"2018 Master Property Management Agreement”) pursuant
to which CEC Rida and its subsidiaries shall from time to time
provide property management services to the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending
on 31 December 2020. The transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details
of the 2018 Master Property Management Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the "2018 First Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time lease properties located within the PRC and owned by the
Group to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2020. The
transactions contemplated under the 2018 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the 2018 First Master Lease Agreement
and the related caps are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

(iii)

(iv)

Report of the Directors
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(v) On 19 December 2017, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2018 Second Master Lease
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group shall from time
to time rent properties located within the PRC and owned by
the CEC Group from the CEC Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. The transactions contemplated under the 2018 Second
Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the 2018 Second
Master Lease Agreement and the annual cap for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the announcement dated 19
December 2017.

On 26 June 2015, the Company entered into a financial
services agreement (the “2015-2018 Financial Services
Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial Co.,
Ltd (“CEC Finance"”), a subsidiary of CEC, to regulate
the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and their respective proposed caps of the
transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 5 February 2016 to 30 June 2018.

The 2015-2018 Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 19 November 2015, details of which
are set out in the circular dated 27 October 2015.

On 25 April 2018, in order to continue the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the 2015-2018 Financial Services Agreement, and to
facilitate the Group’s operation upon the expiration
of the 2015-2018 Financial Services Agreement on
30 June 2018, the Company entered into a financial
services agreement (the “2018 Financial Services
Agreement”) with CEC Finance to regulate the terms
of the proposed continuing connected transactions
and their respective proposed caps of the transactions
thereunder for the period commencing from 1 July
2018 to 30 June 2021. Pursuant to the 2018 Financial
Services Agreement, the financial services provided
by CEC Finance to the Group includes deposit
services, financial assistance and fee-based and
commission-based financial services.

The 2018 Financial Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 28 June 2018, details of which are set out in the
circular dated 8 June 2018.

(v)  R2017F12A198 ' ARAIEFHEETFEEVAHRE
& ([2018FE DR EWZE]) - HBit - AEBEBH
201851 B1H £ E2020F12 8318 It A =F T8 M
FRETEEXREARAANRTREEATRETER
RERAREEZME - 2018FF —_MNEHEERZE Nt
EITZRPERARBZHBERERS - 2018FF =17
B EME REE2018F 128318 L E FIRFEH
MRBEHA2017F12A19B 2 AERN »

R2015F6H26H * A AR EABHEFEE 2K
BRAPHRETHHKEREETAR (THEHMK])
FIVEESRAERHZE (12015-20182HE /A
EWE])  UARE2016F2 A58 £20184F6A30
AR EEZFERERI S KR REKAH
HIRPEZLER -

2015-20182He R & EE MHERZ 5 LIRE
FEBARNBB AR N20155F11 A198 L17HIR
REFRIRE LHE - BEFFIBE SR HEIA2015
F10827B ZBEHA o

M20185F4H258 + & 7 #E R 1£2015-2018%
AeMAEEETRETZEERERS N
MR AREB7E2015-20182 HEL @A EHER
2018F6A30H EMmEMLE - A a B EH
B rzHEEE EHE (20182 HE/E 1EH
F#1) AR E2018F781H E2021F6A30H 1
HRZzERFERER I 2K RESBET
RPEZELR - RBIE20182E A EHE

EUBRAANEERBE A EREREFRRS -
PHEPHRIZFEBRAETEWE 2R

20182 HEeMAEHERBER S EREERS
N A B RER201849F6 A28 H £ 17 1 I B 5 7
A2 HiE EEFBESN B A2018F6A8
HZ@BEA o
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Pursuant to the 2015-2018 Financial Services
Agreement and the 2018 Financial Services Agreement,
the maximum daily balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB820 million and
the Group’s actual balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) with CEC Finance on any
given day during the year ended 31 December 2018
had not exceeded such amount. For the provision of
financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall
not exceed RMB820 million on any given day and the
actual balance of financial assistance provided by CEC
Finance on any given day during the year ended 31
December 2018 had not exceeded such amount.

The above continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor
of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the
Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that these continuing connected
transactions:

o have not been approved by the Board;

° were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group;

° were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o have exceeded the cap as disclosed in the
announcements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:

EERBFERBE 2ER

RAEFEERARBERARER - NIARREEH
AR AREASEXGERNMBZBKRHEF XA
REBABF 2 KI5

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity ESREHER
Yt BEREEH BERZIEXK ZEGME
Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture Deputy chairman
EEA ERYEE (M) of integrated circuits BEER

EXBRRT MBS
CEC Chitsing Technology Investment holdings Director
Co., Ltd (Note 1) REER 5=

R EETRTARAT (M)

Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman
BB BE W) of integrated circuits EER

ERERRE AR
Ma Yuchuan Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director
BEN BB BEBE) of integrated circuits E%

Jiang Juncheng

Nanjing Micro One Electronics Inc
(Note 1)
MRMBEEFERAR (M)

Chengdu Sino Microelectronics
Technology Co., Ltd (Note 1)
REEMEFRIRBRRA (A1)

Shanghai Belling (Note 1)

ERE R R

Design and manufacture Chairman
of integrated circuits EEE
ERERTG R

Design and manufacture Director
of integrated circuits 5=

£ B RS R

Design and manufacture Chairman of the

ZERK BB BEWET) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
ERBRBREGE EER

Liu Jinmei Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director

2|31l tgRE ) of integrated circuits -
ERBRRT M BGE

Note: Bt -

74

CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. These companies are subsidiaries
or associates of CEC and engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

(1) FREFEE/ARAZELERER - PHEFEE
REREEFREERMERTEZZELEREEHE
¥ WERARTPEEFEEZHE QRSB EQE M
HREMBARSMEARYAREEAREEEBHEER
HEREREF AT R BT 2 RN ERAHE -
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The above mentioned competing businesses are
operated and managed by independent management
and administration. The Board exercises independent
judgment and is always acting for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above. Except where
Mr. Dong Haoran changed from his position as director
to deputy chairman of Huada Semiconductor, there
has been no change in details in relation to directors’
interests in competing business since the last reporting
period.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2018, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
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R2018F12A31H ' REFHFLHEKAIE33
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I

&=

&
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the BEARRARIEEITIRAS%IIA £ 2
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:
Number of
shares held or
attributable Percentage
BEREWL of shareholding
Name of interested party BEREGEER I 8 B BHRBEDL
China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)])
Huada Semiconductor (Note1) ZEXNFE (Hf:71) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) mEEFER(Hi72) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
Notes: Mt -

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2018, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

(1) FEARFEEEHCEC (BV)Z100%MRHE « RIZE 5 KA
BIG0 - ERFEEWIRABIFACEC BVVFIEFEZAR
7812 500,000/ i 15 < HE =5 ©

) HESFEERBBEERNVEEZ100%RE - RIEEFFH
EARGY - HEEF REWRAAEALEEAES
BZARRRRM 2 EE -BEEERTHAETEE (RE
FEERRYZEALE) ARARRZREER AR

P L PR R R A RBIRMD 2R -

B EXXIREESN 0 FR2018F12A31H » XA R
AENSEHITMAEMALTEEARRRIKGKIEEE
foﬁzﬁ.:EﬁWE%m%&HHi%{wﬁu%33611%\1%
FzETMAZERIORE -
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION
ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

According to the terms and conditions of a revolving
loan facility in an aggregate amount of up to RMB250
million (the “Facility”), CEC, a controlling shareholder
of the Company, is required to maintain not less than
51% of the beneficial shareholding interest (direct or
indirect) of the Company. Details of the Facility are set
out in the announcement dated 11 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for 61% of the Group’s sales
for the year and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for 23% of the Group's
sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 86%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 40% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC Group is not
a beneficial owner of the five largest customers and is
the beneficial owner of two of the five largest suppliers
of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.

EREBRR ST ETERE

BE—BRELIRAARKZ0EETHIRER
REIRED 2EFXEGE,  FREFEE (K
NEERRR) BEFEBERRR T DR51%H
ERREES (EEREE) - REFBHNEH
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SR E R X -

BO - HEIWEEF S
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 or
subsisted at 31 December 2018.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 35 to the
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has undertaken
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDITOR

On 28 June 2018, the term of office of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company
has expired. On the same day, the shareholders
resolved to appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company. Details of the change of auditor are set out
in the announcement dated 26 March 2018.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Haoran
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ELECTRONICS
HUADA TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman lIslands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 86 to 183, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ET RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRER
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B HAIHEE RAMESZEFBEERAR
DAEE AN EFTRIEHER -

BARETEE

AREFFEERERMANERHE  RAEX
HGAMBREANENTRAEENSTH - BLER
HRERMEABREAMBBRERLEASRE
BETREN - HHTEHELEREHREBNE
R ITNEFEME » HANE WA EEH
REFEFHENBANZEARNDTPREMR -

BMERET T ARELBEN LT 56 M5
BREAFENEDF O BMANE T BHRESE
LB FHABNEE - AR BANE
AIEERREATREYFENGEAVBRREXN
#5 R UM B T ARG B At IR e © PIBTT AT
BFENGR  BREY NRERESTZHMRT
MIEF  REAVRBRERERETERREHR
TERE
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Key audit matter

FRARESEE

Revenue Recognition

WA &R

Revenue from the sale of integrated circuit products
is recognized at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the products. Some of the sales
contract terms, including quality inspection period
and warranty provision, generate complexity and
judgment in determining the timing of revenue
recognition.
HEEKEREMNBRAREERHEER TERH
REIEHER  — RN EMFEE - EET WA
REFEER - MOHESWGRR (BREEREH R
BIRRR) W R R K HIER -

The Group’s disclosures about revenue recognition
are included in note 2, 4 and 5 to the financial
statements.
ERESRRABRNBERH NI BHHREMT2 - 4K
5 o

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) on trade

ESERSBNRAEERR (RAGEERR) RE

The gross balance of trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$655,426,000,
against which allowance for expected credit losses
amounting to HK$65,402,000 was made. The
collectability of trade receivables is a key element of
the Group’s working capital management, which is
managed on an ongoing basis by management.

R2018F12A31H  BEHRWNKRERLEHR R
655,426,000/ 7T * LUt EH M TEHREEBIEEER
65,402,000/ 7T - EZEUHIBEH AT KEER B&E

BB EENERTR  RHEEEREERE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % BY A R

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ZHRRENBEEETRONMESN

We performed walkthroughs to understand the
design of the revenue recognition process. We tested
the controls which the management has established
in recording sales and revenue recognition.

BPIEEE TRERRWAERNBE - A A
AEE B HE R AR G E O EIEEE -

We have, on a sample basis, reviewed sales contracts
to ensure that the revenue recognition policy applied
by the Group follows the HKFRS requirements. More
specifically we reviewed how the quality inspection
period were considered within the revenue
recognition process. We also reviewed the amounts
of goods returned during the year.

BMEMEEMHEESN R EXREMANKA
WRABRBREEV B RELENORT - AR -
B EHNERARIRBETEEREREEREY -
BPMEHNFARETYWHIIA -

Our other audit procedures included, amongst
others, obtaining confirmations, performing sales
cutoff test, and testing revenue transactions around
the year.

HAWEMEARFEE (AhaiE) BEHR - #17
HEHRAA LU BREFEANNBRARZETRH -

receivables

We tested the Group’s processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of trade receivables and
review of credit risks of customers.

HA2AE EXEEAHESRZEZIRUFERERR
FREERBMNER REZEHEE -

We obtained the provision matrix and reviewed the
Group's historical observed default rates through the
analyses of ageing of receivables.

BB ESREEERE  WEBDTEWFIAN KRR E
B EEENELERENEX -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ET RS

Key audit matter

FARESSEE

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables. The assessment of the
correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs requires
significant management judgment, which in turn
impacts the recoverability of the Group’s receivables.
EEEEREGERGEEIRKFIENTEREERS
B HELERENR  BAKLERALKERESEES
BRNERETHNTEZTETEBITEE AR - #
mEE BREREKFIEL R YD -

The Group’s disclosures about provision for ECL
are included in note 2, 4 and 20 to the financial
statements, which specifically explain the key
estimation the management used in the assessment.
EEEAMEREEBERBENRES N BmRM T
2420 BEFAERERHET AN EEME -

Other information included in the
Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included
in the Company’s 2018 Annual Report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. We obtained draft Annual Report dated
22 March, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and
we expect to obtain final version of the Annual Report
after the date of our auditor’s report. Management is
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information obtained prior to
the date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

82

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ZARENTSEHEETPTRNMELH A

We also evaluated management’s assessments of
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment with public available
information.
HAMEHEE R BEHES AR E AR EE R
RIEARMGERETHRM -

BRERFHRANEMGESR

Hi &M BE2018FHRANAEER - ETBRE
RE M BHE LB MOZBE®RE - RONAE
HREARERST3IA2Z2HNFRER - FHE
BMBEARAEZREHRRERGRM - EEEA
HEMEHEER -

BB GEAMBEHRROBEIAL TNREELMBER -
BT T EZEEMENBREATEANEZTS
Ciiii e

EERTGAVBHRERY  EENETRHE
HMER @ RT  ZEHEMEREE EER
BHMBEBAKESERTBRETATHENBRLE
BATN 8 KBUFEERNERRL - ERXNE
FEMTHNIIE MRESHRSEMENEEX
ERR EERERERXEE -KEETE B
ERBEARESE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
sO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % BY A R

EENGEMBRRAREZER

BERREFRAAEREBEESGHAMAGEN 2(F
B BREER]) REBCR RN OB ERE
WEIBEEMRENGEEMBHRE  UHERRD
{58 4R & B 75 S 3k ) AR 151 117 78 FR X BRRF SR sR T
EYMBAERRAVFNRMLIEFAE

ERFIEEMBERRE EFAENHE E5E
SELEMEESN YAEBABR N REEFEL
SAMANER URERAFELE RS ER
RHEEAER BEKREBFRIEFLEE L5
BEHMERNERTER -

EZZESHPEEHNEFRIREEE &5
B EHRERFNEE -

BRBMRETREMBRRARZER

AW BERERAERENFHEAMBHRRERM
ETEFAERNRFFHERMEHNMEKNHRR
ato WEHREHERMBRNZBERS - NS
RBHE - BRBT®RE  BRUAINAIEE A
@& B AR A BRENATHERMEMALE
B AREREE -

ARZBEEEROLE  RREESEIOLA
EATBE TETLREQETBAFENEA
85 ER BRI - 92 SRR A B BREE SR8 IR E A - M
RIS R A IR TR T ] 3 165 PR 4R i
AR BREIELOEERTS  AREAEAR
R -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ET RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

84

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

ERB(EBEENETENBES - ]
ERTEXHAE - R TEREREE - B

o HRIMAHE AN IFE R M BB R A W5
BREFAEARERBRM 2 AR - R L#®T
BEATIZF ARSI LR - DA RERGE R M
BEMETRE  ERIMABRZER - &
REGFRRESRBER  HE F8ER &
RERA - SORBERABES 2 £ B REE
HRRAMGFM SR 2 ERHERRAN R =
RARREHERFERME B2 BAHRBLH
Rk -

MEHERER -

o HEEEMRASHBRRZIREUERELS
AHEFH A RE Z A -

s HEERAKELLEFTERMNREEE
HiEwm o MREPIERNEERE  BER
AFEEFEJBEREBOEANTEE ML -
mARE B Y SRENFELEENE
EBEARE - MRBPIRBRFEERNTET
- RIAMERERBERETRBERET
ERAMBHRRTOMEBNE 0 BREA
FRREETE  ARMEERRFEREE
R B ERRERN B RS B AR
BRFENERE - AW RRFRABERA B
BY BEEETREFELE -

o FERAMBHRMWEEIFRTN  EBEM
N BREE UERSREUBHRERES
BERBRXZHMER -
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % BY A R

e I ERBERNERIAXBEHNVKERE
BABEENENERE UREHEEUB
BEREXRER - RMBEE SKREF|HNT
Fﬁﬂ{‘ EBENMAT - RA/FABRAERE
BiE-

SREMERIN  RAEREZZB QBB T AW

FNBRIHE BRELHELBEABAEREST

iﬁ@%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ#%ﬁﬁ%ﬁW%ET?%'JE’\JEWE
R

BPEMEZZEQRIBH  SHARMCET
BB IENERERE R Y RMBFABREA
EAEMEAR RS ERFIB LN EREN
HM SRR ERBOEER( ER ) -

tHEZZERBNEERD  RMAEERLES
HHEAHGAMBRR CBEARAEE - AME
PR E At R IE o HPIAE AR BB RS h il E
B BRIFERIVERTIATARBRBEE LS
B ZEBRBERNBERT MREGEBERHAER
PIRERBBRERENZ TRIERBBRRH
@ HPPRENEERSPBBEZEER -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2019

HARBIZBEBRE BB AR ASHE
BERAE -
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HEDAD
EBHIR
NEBR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= = 32
mEBER
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEFE
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ok FET FHETT
Revenue A 5 1,686,996 1,453,035
Cost of sales & AR 7 (1,156,265) (952,759)
Gross profit ER 530,731 500,276
Other income H AU A 6 32,855 133,175
Selling and marketing costs HE TS HEEKAR 7 (90,268) (97,641)
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 (343,646) (332,856)
Impairment losses on trade and other & 5 K& H fth i Uk 3 1B
receivables VERIEN SR 20 (20,240) (19,258)
Operating profit FCE g 109,432 183,696
Finance income BE WA 9 5,614 8,731
Finance costs B & B AR 9 (97,610) (101,777)
Finance costs — net BB KA — FRE 9 (91,996) (93,046)
Share of results of associates JE(LEE S AR EE 17 126,651 129,874
Share of result of a joint venture JElh—FRA&ZRRESE 18 228 (2,518)
Profit before taxation R 3 A E R 144,315 218,006
Taxation TIE 10 (27,725) 3,845
Profit for the year KEERF 116,590 221,851
Profit for the year attributable to: ZFERFEER :
Owners of the Company AArERFESE 113,321 220,097
Non-controlling interests e 3,269 1,754
116,590 221,851
Dividend BE 11 40,597 60,896
HK cents HK cents
b= I B
Basic earnings per share BREXEF 12 5.58 10.84
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year REEBEF 116,590 221,851
Other comprehensive income for AEEHBRHERDN
the year, net of taxation: Ht 2 mEUE :
ltems that will not be subsequently TEHERENIEE RN
reclassified to profit or loss: EEMWIER :
Recognition of gain in fair value of BRAYEERIEEYE
owner-occupied properties upon EEXAnERE
transfer to investment properties - 17,602
Share of an associate’s revaluation FEAE — B & R R |y
gains on properties Y E AW E 5,853 1,107
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified Hife A se EN EHE R A
to profit or loss: EEMmIEE :
Exchange differences on translation of BREVBHRED
financial statements PE W =% (162,274) 181,597
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEZ2HKEHAE (39,831) 422,157
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEZ2HKSHAE
attributable to: BEER:
Owners of the Company RARERFESE (42,233) 418,642
Non-controlling interests SEE IR =R 2,402 3,515
(39,831) 422,157
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BAARR R

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
2018128310 20174F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
At TR FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 13 367,599 420,352
Investment properties BREME 14 48,847 51,202
Land use rights =+ 3 {F PR A 15 11,302 12,314
Intangible assets B EE 16 2,059 2,869
Investment in associates REEE R RIRE 17 2,665,777 2,782,326
Investment in a joint venture R—E&& A rIKRE 18 - 4,106
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 10 38,024 40,980
3,133,608 3,314,149
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 19 603,679 406,085
Trade and other receivables Z 5 N E e W A 20 722,947 767,270
Financial assets at fair value through BAnRBE A\ BEReREE
profit or loss 21 42,029 -
Available-for-sale financial assets EEESRERE 21 = 202,485
Short-term deposits MEER 22 91,303 11,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 23 375,525 373,831
1,835,483 1,760,671
Total assets BEEHAE 4,969,091 5,074,820
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2 A A
e BERRR
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018128318 2017%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
et TR FETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEzRkEE
Equity attributable to owners EARREBHEEEN
of the Company e
Share capital and premium & AN K g (B 24 825,454 825,454
Reserves i (707,366) (551,812)
Retained earnings REE T 1,804,305 1,751,880
1,922,393 2,025,522
Non-controlling interests IR R 18,790 16,388
Total equity EREEE 1,941,183 2,041,910
Liabilities as
Non-current liabilities E(RBERE
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIBAE 10 24,511 14,126
Current liabilities REAE
Deferred government grants EEB T 25 44,083 31,863
Contract liabilities AHAaE 13,377 -
Advances from customers BETENRIE = 10,462
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e BRIE 26 638,480 634,801
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 27 2,295,297 2,314,473
Income tax payable FEfT TS 58 12,160 27,185
3,003,397 3,018,784
Total liabilities EEAE 3,027,908 3,032,910
Total equity and liabilities ERREBELEE 4,969,091 5,074,820

The financial statements on pages 86 to 183 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed on its REEE

behalf by:

Dong Haoran E#% %
Director 2%

Liu Hongzhou ZJ4TiM

Director %

HNEEEFIBAE TV BEREAELEETZN
2019F 3 A20A#E R IRBETIEE - WA T AL
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERRBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARERAERL
Property Non-

Share Share Surplus  Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
e BaiE BRER EifE NEEGER Gl (] AR REER 68 FERER R&4E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL Thn Thn ThL ThL ThL

(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note (3))

Wan) (B2 (WEe)
At 1 January 2017 H0E1R18 20,299 805,155 19,664 #5.421) 5201 (743.127) {415 1610720 1,667,776 12873 1,680,649
Total comprefensive income 2kELE - - - 180,603 17,942 - - 20,097 418642 3515 s
Aopropriation to surplus reserve RORHEE - - 18,041 - - - - (18,041) - - -
Payment of dividend ks - - - - - - - (60,8%) (60,8%) - (60,8%)
At 31 December 2017 H20175123318 20,29 805,155 37,705 135,182 PRALE] (743.127) {415 1,751,880 2005522 16,388 2041910
At 1 January 2018 H2018E1818 20,299 805,155 31,705 135,182 PEALE] (1312 (715 1751880 2005512 16,388 2,041,910
Total comprehensive income PENELEE - - - (161,407) 5,853 - - 1330 (#2233) 2402 (39831)
Payment of diidend ks - - - - - - - (60,89%) (60,89%) - (60,8%)
At 31 December 2018 20185123318 20,299 805,155 31,705 (26,225) 28,99 (13.12) (715 1,804.305 1922393 18,790 1941183
(@  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (a) WBEEBEPBEIANNEDN  ARAFNRPEZHBARDN

portion of the profits of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries has
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve

fund (the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

BOBMNCEBEREIRNECEZFRESNFREES
(TBHREEDA -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FET FAET
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Cash flows generated from ReEtFzHanE
operations 28 8,642 298,903
Interest paid > A AE (101,569) (160,126)
Income tax paid SIS %R (24,299) (13,425)
Net cash flows (used in)/ generated &% E8) (FTH) EE£Z
from operating activities ReREFHE (117,226) 125,352
Cash flows from investing REZHZRERE
activities
Interest received U BRI B 6,151 30,529
Purchase of property, plant and E%/\‘T'%% B KRR
equipment, and intangible assets MEEEE (10,349) (39,707)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment RABFTISRIE 1,748 5,974
Payment for financial assets at fair XfRAREF AER
value through profit or loss S ELE ENIE (541,115) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZRARBEFABRR
assets at fair value through TEEEMMSNRIA
profit or loss 708,086 -
Payment for available-for-sale XAt ESREE
financial assets P = (579,444)
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEEREE
available-for-sale financial assets FTi8 #2118 = 425,484
(Increase)/decrease in short-term HHEREERRESZ
deposits and cash in transit (1) (80,303) 121,323
Dividends received WER B B 51,000 51,000
Proceeds from repayment of EEZREERMBSNRIA
entrusted loans - 896,321
Proceeds from disposal of a business & — B 15 7KA = 108,166
Proceeds from disposal of HE—MEERRIMERE
a joint venture 6,839 =
Net cash flows generated from REZBELEZHS
investing activities mEFRE 142,057 1,019,646
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH T
Cash flows from financing METHZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank and RIT R EMEE TSR
other borrowings 2,329,347 4,307,145
Repayment of bank and BEBRITRAMEES
other borrowings (2,239,025) (2,564,428)
Dividend paid SRR B (60,896) (60,896)
Payment for business combination AT HEZEH T EBSE O
under common control 2 FA = (221,082)
Redemption of unsecured corporate bonds EOEKFCEES - (3,117,767)
Net cash flows generated from/ MEEFDELE (FTA)Z
(used in) financing activities Beme 358 29,426 (1,657,028)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBR&SEWEM
and cash equivalents (D) 28 54,257 (512,030)
Effect of exchange rate changes EREH 2 2 (52,563) (26,056)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBEeRReEEY
beginning of the year 373,831 911,917
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEERAEEEY
end of the year 375,525 373,831
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability.
The Company has its shares listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company’'s registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are the design
and sale of integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. —REH

PEHEFEARMBEBERAA (ARQR] &—
FRFAEHEAMKY TREREHELE
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBBHERS
FIERARR LM ARAAMFEMBHEEMU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARBZBEERARATHETEEEXEH
BRAR([TFEEFEED (—HKRFEARK
MBI (THRBEDKRIZEE) °

Gl
X

fin B

L

REWMBAR (GREIAEE]) T EER
BT

H

BH 2 RERE

BRB RN ARAMBHREABITLIIE -
2. EXREHERRHE

REAGAMBRRAEAN T Z S BRET
WRBRRBERAN EFBR -—EERERR
FIEE2MIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had adopted the following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations that are relevant to
its operations and effective for the first time for the
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018:

HKFRS9 Financial instruments
HKFRS15 Revenue from contracts with
customers
HKFRS15 Clarifications to HKFRS15
(amendments) “Revenue from contracts
with customers”
HKAS40 Transfers of investment
(amendments) property
HK(IFRIC)-Int22 Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration
Annual improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS1
2014-2016 cycle and HKAS28

Save as disclosed below, the application of the
above new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations has no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS9 “Financial instruments”

The Group has adopted HKFRS9 on 1 January
2018. HKFRS9 introduces new requirements for
recognition, classification and measurement of financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS9 “Financial instruments” (Cont’d)

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets into the following measurement categories:

° Debt instruments at amortised cost;

o Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with gains or losses
recycled to profit or loss on derecognition; and

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flows characteristics.

From 1 January 2018, the category of loans and
receivables, including cash and cash equivalents,
short-term deposits, trade receivables, and financial
assets included in other receivables, were transferred
to debt instruments at amortised cost under HKFRS9.
Notes receivables were transferred to debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income
under HKFRS9. Available-for-sale financial assets
were transferred to financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS9. No revaluation
reserve is transferred from other reserves to retained
earnings as there is nil revaluation reserve related to
available-for-sale financial assets at 31 December 2017.
Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables and
short-term deposits are recorded based on the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies the simplified
approach under HKFRS9 and records lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present values
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade receivables. The Group applies the general
approach under HKFRS9 to financial assets included
in notes receivables, other receivables and short-term
deposits. The adoption of the expected credit loss
model requirement of HKFRS9 did not result in any
change in impairment allowances of the Group’s debt
financial assets.
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2.1

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS9 “Financial instruments” (Cont’d)

The comparative information of the consolidated
financial statements continues to be reported under
the accounting policies and disclosure requirements
prevailing prior to 1 January 2018, with changes in
presentation as explained below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The Group has adopted HKFRS15 on 1 January 2018.
HKFRS15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Revenue of the Group is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The comparative information of the consolidated
financial statements continues to be reported under
the accounting policies and disclosure requirements
prevailing prior to 1 January 2018, with changes in
presentation as explained below.
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Disclosure on revenue recognised from contracts with
customers by categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, consideration received
from customers in advance for the sale of products of
HK$13,377,000 has been reclassified from advances
from customers to contract liabilities under HKFRS15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations that are relevant to the
operation of the Group have been issued but are not
effective for the accounting period beginning on 1
January 2018 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS3 Definition of a business
(amendments) (effective from 1 January
2020)
HKFRS9 Prepayment features with
(amendments) negative compensation
(effective from 1 January
2019)
HKFRS16 Leases (effective from

1 January 2019)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
(effective date not yet
determined but available for
adoption)

Definition of material (effective

HKFRS10 and
HKAS28
(amendments)

HKAS1 and HKAS8

(amendments) from 1 January 2020)
HKAS28 Long-term interests in associates
(amendments) and joint ventures (effective

from 1 January 2019)
Uncertainty over income tax
treatments (effective from 1
January 2019)
Annual improvements Amendments to HKFRS3,
2015-2017 cycle HKFRS11, HKAS12 and
HKAS23 (effective from 1
January 2019)

HK(IFRIC)-Int23

Except for the application of new requirements under
HKFRS16 “Leases” which may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure,
management does not anticipate that the application
of other new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations will have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.1 REBEE(E)

(b) FralER) -

2EME M AN2018FE1A1ARE

ERNNEET Rz FE (&)

SEHHREE

MAWRWIRF RN 2 BAREERIEAR 25T

Al AL R

FRM B RS LR
£35% (ER])

BERAMBRE
FE9% ({£5] )

‘ﬁFP‘r

2RENT

¥z ERE (8202091 A1
B A AR

BEEBEEREZIRRE
A (HE2019F 1 A1BHREE
%)

EXPHRELER HE(B2019F1A1HEE
£16%5% B0
%.5 BT 3RS 2R &é{% SN NGIE
FI0HRRBEE NAfEzEE ﬁ‘idz&)\
FTERIZE 2855 (E&El H M FREE -
(1&831) AR R ERAN)
EF G EREIHR ERAZERE (B2020F1A1
&%sz(f/m B A A R)
EF G £R) REtE NI RAEERAIZE
#2858 (1&835]) HARERS (B20194E1 A1 1
HE AR
B (BB FrefimiEr THETE I (B
MEREBZES®) 2019F1A1BEERR)
—REE235%
2015F 20174 ERPIERE LR FE35
BEz FEokE BB REERFE
Gl %f}%/\g‘fﬁ?— 1551258
&%;/El = A ElJ%Z.aFﬁZ
B J(@zowiwﬂmt
H3)
BRERNE BV B REERF165E[HE I EX

FEEHUAE 2V RBRBEEEFHIN
I A FRERER AN Eo A ¥ AT 4RI -

ERE
AT R RS

EUAKENGREMBBREREATE -

FEETEANKERAA 2018FFHK 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(c) Going concern

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$1,167,914,000
primarily due to the fact that the Group has liabilities
under short-term bank and other borrowings (the
“Short-term Borrowings”) of HK$2,295,297,000.

The Board has reviewed the Group’'s cash flow
projections which covers a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2018. Given that
the Short-term Borrowings of HK$2,168.5 million
are guaranteed by CEC, and taking into account the
financial resources available to the Group, including
the internally generated funds, expected renewal and
extension of borrowings upon their maturities and the
available committed borrowing facilities, the Board
considers that there are sufficient financial resources
available to the Group to meet its financial liabilities as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months
from 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on those common control combination as disclosed
in Note 2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for business combination
by the Group. The consideration transferred for an
acquisition is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Any contingent
consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Acquisition-related
transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s
statement of financial position (Note 2.8). Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control, whichever is shorter and
regardless of the effective date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous statement of
financial position dates or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

2.2 #HmEERB (&)
() H A T B2 0

AR A & B & SRR SRR TR 2
AR -

REHFEET  EXREH THAHELR
RAVBRREBBERAHERBAETHNY BT
R BIREHNE B EEER BB NES TS
RS T B2 WA B -

fEEHTNAE  HAHNERIKEBNEES
BAREER G - EEABEZES TOHAHHELN
MEIWB T EREREBIAIBSIEE  AER

SERENAAEBBRBRANTENTER

REESABERE ARSHEBRKEHNER
BRI ARREREHERAEBRBX KR
2l (ABGEE BE)NEE  MAZEHRE
HTIHEHEMBRZAE -

FAEMBMRTOLEET  ERRKEHER
&%?‘EEA?&HT E‘Jzﬁﬁfl‘xﬁj{/ﬂ%ﬂ‘}zﬁ-ﬂﬁuxﬂ
HREZEFR (ARBEERE) HCBLECEE

§|J

EULEBRAR —WNEEER SEAREHE
BAXBZENMERS GHRERBERRZXZ K
mERPFRE PHE -

FEETEANEAERAA 2018FF® 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’'s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of associates” in the statement of
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

2.2 #HREEKB (&
()  BEREE)
AEBEEBLEDTRESR MK BEBRNE

BURNEEPWERANER  LHEFERERE
B BAKEEAR -—BE2QRNEESNXE
BEEZE S QB S (81 HE &K
W)  AIRNEBE T SBRE - EBE  KI
AEBERZHE QB ABEEESIHEBB XD
REFHIA °

AEEGEEERE A NEERCARBREEN
BEATREDRE - REDRE - NEBG
BRE BEABEAR MO EERAE
MERE TEBRaXTHEANEEBRE AR
BT o

AEBEEABENE 2B LRMTRR 508
MAEE  EAXAKENMBEHRRPER - HEER
REMEREEEBHEAFRENERE - [RIEX
SIRHB BB TNMEREECDHE  SRIKRER
BRTTAEE BELFANSABREKRTE
TEHE  UMREASERMNZBR -2 -

FEETEANKAERAA 2018FF®K 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(e) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined it to be a joint venture. Investment in
joint venture is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an interest
in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of post-acquisition profit or loss and movements in
other comprehensive income. The Group’s investment
in a joint venture includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership
interest in a joint venture, any difference between the
cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of result of a joint venture”
in the statement of profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint venture have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3  Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Company has adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more
beneficial to the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.

2.3

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

108

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold  5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and, where
applicable, borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property or for which the market has become less active
continues to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values are recognised within “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in
other comprehensive income and increase in property
revaluation reserve within equity. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the remaining part of the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and increase
in property revaluation reserve within equity. For a
transfer from completed properties held for sale or
properties under development to investment properties
that will be carried at fair value, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in
profit or loss.

2.6 Land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights. For the land use rights held
for self-use, the upfront payments are recorded as a
separate asset and are amortised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
their lease periods. For the land use rights held for sale,
the upfront payments are recorded as land use rights
held for sale. Land use rights held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

2.7 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each statement
of financial position date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.9 Financial assets

Policies applicable from 1 January 2018

2.9.1  Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.1  Classification (Cont’d)

(@) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of holding financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.1  Classification (Cont’d)

(c)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price determined in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset or the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.3  Subsequent measurement

(1) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

(2) Fair value through other comprehensive income

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

(3) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.4 Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.4 Impairment (Cont’d)

General approach (Cont’d)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments.

The Group may consider a financial asset is
credit-impaired when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12 month ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.4 Impairment (Cont’d)

General approach (Cont’d)

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 - Financial instruments that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable prior to 1 January 2018
2.9.5 (lassification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 1 year
after the statement of financial position date, which
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans
and receivables comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and “short-term deposits”
in the statement of financial position.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in the other category.
They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose
of the investment within 1 year of the statement of
financial position date, which are classified as current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.6 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets. However, for
available-for-sale financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price, the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant and the possibilities of
the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, is
stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the financial asset is disposed of or determined to
be impaired. Dividend income from available-for-sale
financial assets is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of “other income”
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as part of “other income”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)
Policies applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
2.9.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial
position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. All impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. In the case
of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in statement of profit or loss and in
equity, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale
equity instruments are not subsequently reversed.

2.10 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, and bank and other borrowings.

2.10.1 Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
2.10.2 Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.10.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial
institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or
less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Government grant
relating to an expense item is deferred and recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.15 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.17 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Revenue recognition
Policies applicable from 1 January 2018
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. When the consideration
in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue from
transferring of goods or services is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on acceptance of the goods by
customers or where contract provides a product quality
inspection time period, the product quality inspection
time period has lapsed. The Group considers that the
control of asset is transferred to the customer at the
end of the quality inspection time period.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain goods for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. The Group does
not provide service-type warranty, and therefore, the
Group does not consider the warranty a separate
performance obligation. These assurance-type
warranties are accounted for under HKAS37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
Policies applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

For contracts which provide a customer with a right
to return the goods within a specified period, the
expected value method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS15 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

(c) Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
Policies applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to
customers, the customers have accepted the goods or
the product quality inspection time period has lapsed
and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

—  there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

— it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

—  the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Research and development costs
(Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
three years.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's
business activities are primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. In addition, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would have been HK$1,440,000 lower/higher
(2017: HK$3,818,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains or losses on translation
of Hong Kong dollars denominated cash and cash
equivalents, and bank and other borrowings.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions. The average interest rate of
deposits held in banks and other financial institutions
at 31 December 2018 was approximately 2.89%
(2017: 2.09%) per annum. The average interest rate
of short-term deposits at 31 December 2018 was
approximately 3.23% per annum. Any change in the
interest rate from time to time is not considered to
have a significant impact on the Group’s performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group’s interest rate risk which affects
its results and operating cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings. The bank and other borrowings were at
fixed and variable rates and exposed the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings at fixed rate and variable rate were as
follows:
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HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHEIT

Borrowings at fixed rate ERMEE 2,237,797 2,214,473
Borrowings at variable rate FEHEEE 57,500 100,000
2,295,297 2,314,473

If the interest rate on variable rate borrowings had
been higher/lower by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would have been
HK$145,000 lower/higher (2017: HK$301,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expenses on variable rate borrowings.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets net of loss
allowance as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 December 2018, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment of trade receivables measured
at amortised cost. For financial assets such as trade
receivables measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, other receivables, short-term
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents, they are
classified within stage 1 for measurement of ECLs as
the carrying amount is not yet past due.

At 31 December 2017, all the Group’s deposits with
banks and other financial institutions were placed
or invested in high credit rating financial institutions
without significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of
the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors.
Individual credit limits are set based on the assessment
of the credit quality. Given the constant repayment
history, the Board is of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant.
Further disclosure on credit risk are set out in Note 20.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including
maintaining sufficient working capital, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
borrowing facilities and the ability to close out market
positions, is adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring that sufficient committed
borrowing facilities are available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
by maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are based on the contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities. The Group’s
consideration of going concern is set out in Note 2.1(c).
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HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET FERT

Bank and other borrowings BARHEMEE 2,378,339 - 2,378,339

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE

(excluding salary and welfare (TR F B AR A

payables and other taxes payables) R EfEMFHIE) 571,789 - 571,789

2,950,128 - 2,950,128
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

3. U¥REREREGE)
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31 December 2017
2017512 A31H
More than

1 year but less
than 2 years

Within 1 year —FF Total

—ER BN BMF B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAET TAET

Bank and other borrowings BORHEMEE 2,395,656 - 2,395,656

Trade and other payables B 5 REfhERNRIE

(excluding salary and welfare (NBIERE N Z AR R

payables and other taxes payables) K E A EMFIE) 567,962 - 567,962

2,963,618 - 2,963,618

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, which
comprises issued equity and reserves.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt.

The Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 were as follows:
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2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FHET

Bank and other borrowings (Note 27) SRITREMEE (Wit27) 2,295,297 2,314,473
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) & - RE&MBEEHEY

(K1:t23) (375,525) (373,831)

Net debt B %R 1,919,772 1,940,642

Total equity R B 1,941,183 2,041,910

Total capital BB 3,860,955 3,982,552

Gearing ratio ERBELE 49.72% 48.73%

In the opinion of the Board, the Group’s capital risk is
not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

EFEeRR/AKERE ZERARARTERK

NAnEFfEZeRITAREBERERAAERE
DB/ TI—E=MR

s F—RAREFENBHREEXBENE
Bmish 2 RE(RKAE)E
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs

3. HMBEABREREE)

&t (&)

s FARREFEDNRE-RABEZIHRE
S BEERRBEANER (AER) KB
(BERTLE)BRZBUERY -

3.3 QDREf

e FE=RAnEFENUNEREESNBECKE
AEE ﬁ%%ﬁl?ﬁg(%ELA&R/T\Z%UJ’%ME@ﬁ%

for the asset or liability that are not based on 17
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Movements in the financial assets that are measured at KEFEURAARBFECEMEEZEFHWOT ¢
fair value during the year are as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Wealth management products M EEEER B Bo& E=R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEBT FAET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1818 - - 37,249 37,249
Exchange differences bE X =R - - 7,711 7,711
Additions #Zn - - 579,444 579,444
Disposals & - - (421,919)  (421,919)
At 31 December 2017 720175128318 - - 202,485 202,485
At 1 January 2018 20181818 - - 202,485 202,485
Transfer between levels A RIS R = 142,360 (142,360) =
Exchange differences [ =58 - (3,081) (844) (3,925)
Additions 20 - 180,720 370,835 551,555
Disposals HE - (282,641)  (425,445)  (708,086)
At 31 December 2018 720185%12H31H - 37,358 4,671 42,029

See

Note 14 for disclosures of the investment

properties that are measured at fair value.

FRAMEIMURABHEZRENEZHRE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

Judgment is required in determining the timing of
revenue from contracts with customers. Revenue from
the sale of integrated circuit products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the integrated circuit products when the products are
accepted or when the quality inspection period has
lapsed.

The Group considers that the expected value method
is the appropriate method to use in estimating the
variable consideration for the sale of integrated circuit
products with rights of return, given the large number
of contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration
in the transaction price, the Group considers whether
the amount of variable consideration is constrained.
The Group considers that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable
consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

4. FEGGHETRAE

41 HEFZHEZEHNEEZWA

RETEEPZBZANEE Z W AR B
AITEHIE - HEEKEREMRHNKRAREERE
HEEE TEPHNREMER  —REXNEX
EREmE (AERKEEAKEEREHERR)
B4

ERNREANNFEHER - A5ERSERAEH
BEEB 35 & BR[| 6 S AX B S 2 By ] &
HEETHITERABENITA -

BAERATZHESRAARIERZA  AEH
SERENELEESRREXRE - AEEREH
BELR BB RRITEBNRN BRI &
HBEMMBFLEZRSG o g5 ATEEEN T HE
MR I ARRR o
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.2 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. During the year, the Board reassessed the
dividend policy of its major subsidiary established in the
PRC, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) based on the Group’s current business
plan and financial position, certain retained earnings
generated by Huada Electronics would be distributed to
its non-PRC registered intermediate holding company
and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this respect was
provided in the year to the extent that such earnings
are estimated by the Board to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$615,592,000 (2017:
HK$646,111,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEEHETIRHE(F)

4.2 FBHRIELZERE

AEEERTRBDAERBMAED - REEPT
SHERBz2BER - FEDMGE G - KA
FEBEREPHFERS MFTEHHAETEHERR
ZRMBETE - M FFRIEZRBHERERIN
AR TR REERNBERYERZM
BREEEHARBELETE -

RIEFBEMERMABHREZ - B2008F1A1HE @ ¥
BRI R EREBIMTEE DK BEE
WI0%HFBINFAEH - RAFAR  BFEEERA
SEREFEBE S MM BERREFBREL LR
BerXrB2MEARILRTEEAEFRIFARE
ERAR(TEREF) WREBE  EAETH
ETRE N DIK T H AP BRI FREERA
A Bt NEEEMAFRAI AR KRS K
MAER RAFERARETEHRERGELR
e

AEBVERFEHATRMNEARNREAETER
Al B AR R ok H AR BIIR 4N € 58 A615,592,000
77T (20174F : 646,111,000 7T) B % 51| 8 5 1
ERIBEE -

FEETEANEAERAA 2018FFH 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.3 Estimation of expected credit loss on
trade receivables

Except for certain trade receivable from customers
with specific credit risk that management adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the past
due days for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., GDP) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 20 to the
financial statements.

4. FEGHETIRHAE(E)

43 EBZERBRERHMEEBRE 2

RERERAARESERRETRAESWE
5 FE Yo 50R 3R AR BB ST 7 45D - A B
PR 8018 A £ 55 R OB PO R A AR <
S BB BB ER S TR P RS (3
IE - EREE - EEBARIE) ZEHHA
Bt -

BRERESNERASENELBRENE - X
SEBEBHEMEEN URABELEEBEL
B M AERERE o filan - AR FEBI AV RN (AnE
NEERE) BERKR—FAR(L  EAEER
BAOHERN BEREHXESWHAE &R
TH EBELXBERIMEORBEREN - L0
AR ET R B 1L -

HELEBRINNEHR - TR M TEH
EEBEZENEBENFIEAR -—EEZNMG
e HHIEEERNSBHREMNEL RIERD
REMRRBRHRE - NEBNELEEBERERK
BRG] AR RARAREFHNE
BRENBR - BEAAKREE 5 EUFANEHRE
EEENERBRER T B RERME20 -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.4 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent professional valuer. The
valuation is principally based on direct comparison
method by taking into account the terms of any
existing leases and other external evidence such as
current market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation rates
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation techniques and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in
Note 14.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the statement
of financial position date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

4. FEEHETIRHE(F)

4.4 RKREVERLARE

FA - EFGFMEEEBHAEEREVELAR
BEFAZEIERR REVEZAAEESFAMH
BUEXMAEMIELTG ZEEITBERNER
HBOE - sEAERRIRABEL 2 G R EAMINEE
BRI RRANE 2 REMSHEE S
HEEBR) LEARREMEBECEEZRRFEM
BHERZERMELRFRE - WEMR 2EESX
REBRBREEMZ14PKE -

45 FEMEERE
AEERMBEIRRKBHFFEMEIEREER

TREENREER  AETRENR BEEE
FBEECELEUNRAEBRE QL ERLDEK
AREFEREER  AGERCRE- - 2R BB
ERARERABREEAFRGPANRINEE
RHNABBEXABEMERNEEENEE
RAGTE - WM EREENE  MEEEAM
AEEIREEABMNNAFAKESRE &
MEENMERERUAEZFRERENRE -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

5. WA K2 E8E %

INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (@) WA
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT F& T
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKERE R 1,686,996 1,453,035

All the revenue of the Group are from sale of goods,
which is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred at a point in time. The amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period was HK$10,462,000.

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of an operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

The Board considers that the Group's operations
are operated and managed as a single segment and
accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.

Revenues of HK$379,004,000 and HK$200,523,000
(2017: HK$367,263,000 and HK$166,871,000),
respectively, are derived from 2 (2017: 2) external
customers of the Group. Save as disclosed herein, no
revenue derived from a single external customer has
exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable
to the market in the PRC and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

AEEMBNHEHEERRA - HREEYHE
HEEREPORMEIER S ARSH
BHBEMRAGREREZSBANESER
10,462,000/ 7T °

(b) EEZIR

EREEREEFS (X2LERRE)CEHE
HERREDEERBORE  EELEDH
EFEERBEEZEDH 2L EN (TMEREARDE
IR BIRA RS ARHEERR -

EERRAREE Y EBINE—SBEER
BRI EEELEDHER -

s

/% #1379,004,0005% 7T 5 200,523,0005 7T (2017
£ 1 367,263,000 7T & 166,871,0005 7T) 2 W
ADRIREAEBE ZMA (2017F : MB) INAE
FoBANAIFEESEN  WEEMKREE IR
EPZBABBAREEKAZ10% °

% 1 A5 55 (B HE100% 2 R A SR 9 34 o B 745 L
BIBO0% 2 FRBEECRDE - M W T
AT
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6. OTHER INCOME

6. HaA

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Government grants BT #6 BY 14,511 20,711
Gain on disposal of a business HE—BEBKR — 102,510
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeE RS 2,415 -
Exchange gains ME H W s 2,050 3,356
Fair value gains on financial assets EAnEFAER
at fair value through profit or loss EMEEAAERE 3,229 =
Gains on disposal of financial assets HERARBEF AER
at fair value through profit or loss TR & E WS 7,211 -
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHIEEREERS
financial assets = 3,565
Rental income e WA 2,531 1,217
Others Hit 908 1,816
32,855 133,175

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

7. BHEEDIZEHR

FIESHERA - SHE R IG5HERAMITERAX

marketing costs and administrative expenses are ZERSWIT
analysed as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHFEER
(Notes 13, 15 and 16) (H1a£13 - 15K%16) 45,379 44,824
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERMA (HiE8) 161,223 178,664
Changes in inventories of finished goods — B R EE mF & & &)
and work in progress 197,594 149,075
Raw materials and consumables used FT A R M 8 I B FE o 919,501 797,480
Provision for inventories (Note 19) FEBEHFE19) 40,285 12,056
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZKERERX 16,629 17,111
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 R B & 2,573 2,621
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Cont’d)

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2018 were HK$211,823,000 (2017:
HK$224,869,000) and mainly comprised of employee
costs of HK$110,787,000 (2017: HK$122,815,000)
and material costs of HK$34,375,000 (2017:
HK$34,593,000). No research and development costs
were capitalised during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

7. RUBEIDZER(E)

HZE2018F12A31H EFEZHERFEXAN A
211,823,000/ 7T (20174 : 224,869,000 7T)
TEBFEEE K A110,787,000/% 7T (20174 :
122,815,000/%8 7T) & # KK Z4834,375,000/% 7T
(20174 : 34,593,000/87T) > REIE2018%12H
BTALEFEEAR  WERRERFAZEXARTAERE
(20174 : #) o

8. EERAMAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12H31BLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT F& T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &  EREREWEF 139,626 151,785
Contributions to retirement schemes BARETEE R (W it @) (b))

(Notes (a) and (b)) 21,597 26,879

161,223 178,664

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to MPF Scheme are expensed as
incurred.

(b)  The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible
for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries
made contributions to retirement schemes in
the PRC and are expensed as incurred.

() AEERETESEREERIRES
g - NEEYRE I 2HANELER
SIFERA S ©

(b) ARFEEHEZHMERRREREDED K
M2 EEREFORAKEE - PEBRM
TRFHEREZETERKER ZRIK
SEME - 2FPEMNE QARG BIE
HERAERELERFIIEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It FE
8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EEwMBMAX(E)
(Cont’d)
()  Five highest paid individuals () ILTERSHFHMAL
Total emoluments paid to the five highest paid FAXNTAREELEERHMA LT ZEME
individuals of the Group during the year are as follows: ™
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& - 2 REWEF 4,482 4,925
Bonuses TEAL 5,842 4,166
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET B 786 418
11,110 9,509
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals did T TMALTIE (2017F : —R) AQAE
not include any director of the Company (2017: one) EMEECMEN FTUATEHE :

and their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/ JT 2 4
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/% 7T —3,000,000/% 7T 1 -
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA - AEEYEOAERESH AT EMR
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an MEERIMBARKRE S NER 2 RZENSERBEET

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as Z f1E -

compensation for loss of office.
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9.  FINANCE COSTS - NET 9. ®ERX—FHE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Finance costs: BB R -
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEMEXH 97,610 101,777
Finance income: BB WA -
— Interest income on cash and cash -ReMREeEFEEY
equivalents FEMKA (5.614) (8,731)
Finance costs — net RE KA — FEE 91,996 93,046
10. TAXATION 10. #Hi1E
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current taxation KEFERHIE
— PRC corporate income tax — B EREH 15,456 13,379
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —EBa Mz BIEHR
(Note (c)) (Htat(c)) 414 1,734
15,870 15,113
Deferred taxation IREFIE
— PRC corporate income tax —F B EREH 513 (22,057)
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — 7% B & Fl 2 B PTIFHT
(Note (c)) (Htat(c)) 11,342 3,099
11,855 (18,958)
27,725 (3,845)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

In accordance with the corporate income
tax laws of the PRC, the applicable
statutory tax rate of Huada Electronics and
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co.,
Ltd (“Huahong”) is 25%. However, Huada
Electronics and Huahong qualified as an
“Integrated Circuit Design Enterprises in
National Planning Layout” (“ICDE”) and thus
enjoyed a 10% preferential tax rate for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Based on
management’s self-assessment and their track
record of success in obtaining such types of
qualifications, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics will continue to qualify as an ICDE
and Huahong will qualify as a “High and New
Technology Enterprise” and thus enjoy a 10%
and a 15% preferential tax rate, respectively,
after the year ended 31 December 2018.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
a foreign investment enterprise distributes
dividends out of the profits earned from 1
January 2008 onwards to its overseas investors,
such dividends are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

BN AREBNEE2018F12A318 IEF
EREBTEELTMERTERN &I
W\ EBFNESTRIELEE (201748 - £) o

RBFECEMSHENBAE  EAE
MEBEUNEREREREELA ([
i) ZEAEAEREAB25% A H=E
2018F12A31HLLFE  EXRETRE
MESIBRREHBEANENK TR
¥|([BREKEHEEITLE]) B
GEREFRENZZ10% 2EBEHE -
ERERENERTAURBATERINES
ZERIEK > REE2018%F128318 1
FEZE  ERXREFHRAUGEEESEH
REKREERBRACEERRELCBERS
(BNt | ERTAMIFIZER10%
N15% 2 1B HBBIE -

BIBEFBRPEMESRENBBRE B
BARAZIIMERECEURBAEEIMNGE
EHEB2008F1A1EREEN & F -
ZERBEBHMI0%NFENATET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &
10. BB (=&

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation expense (d) AEEBERBANEFNZHERTEZSEE

10. TAXATION (Cont‘d)

on the Group’s profit before taxation and the

theoretical taxation that would arise using the N
respective applicable statutory tax rates is as

follows:

RAER KR ATET 8 < 3 im0 2 H Bk 40

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B 54 B & A 144,315 218,006
Calculated at respective applicable REQGHEAEEMEFE
statutory tax rates ZTHIB 59,837 53,918
Effect of tax concession MIER R 2 & (34,198) (5,834)
Research and development costs T 7¢ K B B B AR BE AN BR
additional deductions (12,126) (20,793)
Income not subject to tax 7B SRR (38,344) (21,912)
Expenses not deductible for taxation ED
purposes 20,027 1,337
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEEHHELEHRIE XL
taxation (405) -
Derecognition/(recognition) of deferred tax Bt AR FERIEE BRI,
assets for previous year’s tax losses (BER)ELEHEBEEE 11,158 (10,698)
Utilisation of previously temporary B ARAT EERELERIE
differences for which no deferred tax BEZERZEZR
asset was recognised - (30,817)
Withholding tax on distributed profits B BR N R AFE
and current year's undistributed profits Ko BLmF 2 BIFTEH 17,722 6,567
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEERELCHEEE 2
asset was recognised HIBEE 4,054 24,387
Taxation expense B X 27,725 (3,845)
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EZEBIE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20189 12H31H 2017412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RETIEE E 38,024 40,980
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBERE (24,511) (14,126)
13,513 26,854
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S A N
e BERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE
10. TAXATION (Cont’d) 10. BiIE (&
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d) (e) EERIE (£)
The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities M AET RIEE AR RIS 2 6858 FRIEL
during the year without taking into consideration the MEBEERBEZEZHOT :
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority
are as follows:
Salary and
Impairment welfare Deferred
of payables government
inventories ERHH grants Others Total
Deferred tax assets EEREEE FEHE NER EEBFHE Htt &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET TAT
At 1 January 2017 R2017%181H 1,004 2,716 1,125 12,120 16,965
Exchange differences e 158 201 186 1,413 1,958
Credited to the statement of profit or loss HeBREE 2,496 289 3,068 16,204 22,057
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A8318 3,658 3,206 4,379 29,737 40,980
At 1 January 2018 R2018%181H 3,658 3,206 4,379 29,737 40,980
Exchange differences 5= (310) (168) (254) (1,115) (1,847)
(Charged)/credited to the statement of GtA)/BeBER
profit or loss 4,168 623 1,531 (7,431) (1,109)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%128318 7,516 3,661 5,656 21,191 38,024
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains KAEEF Total
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE ARERE ZRHMEH Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TER
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1818 - 7,812 7,812
Exchange differences 5N =5 108 1 109
Charged to the statement of FFABRRK
profit or loss - 4,833 4,833
Reclassification to current income BB EHEN
tax payable FT{S# k1A = (1,734)  (1,734)
Recognition of gain in fair value of BERMEEREENE
owner-occupied properties upon EER R ERE
transfer to investment properties 3,106 - 3,106
At 31 December 2017 M20175%12831H 3,214 10,912 14,126
At 1 January 2018 R2018F181H 3,214 10,912 14,126
Exchange differences fE N =5 1 (362) (361)
(Credited)/charged to the statement (Ke) st ABHR
of profit or loss (596) 14,532 13,936
Reclassification to current income ENREEHEMNAMEBHNKIE
tax payable - (3,190) (3,190)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 2,619 21,892 24,511

HEEFEARMKERIE 2018FFHK
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

10. TAXATION (Cont’d)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position include the following:

10. ®IBE (&
(e) EEHHE(EZ)

RESVBARARINTZ2BERENUTIER :

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%12831H 2017F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T F& T
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
— To be recovered after more than — #1218 A & W (=
12 months - 18,720
— To be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A AUk 38,024 22,260
38,024 40,980
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
- To be settled after more than — #1218 A & ER
12 months - 3,214
— To be settled within 12 months — #1218 A RER 24,511 10,912
24,511 14,126

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carrying forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. At 31 December 2018, the Group
did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$62,919,000
(2017: HK$78,160,000) in respect of losses amounting
to HK$381,329,000 (2017: HK$428,464,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income.
Tax losses of HK$381,329,000 has no expiry date
(2017: HK$340,664,000 has no expiry date, and
HK$87,800,000 will expire within 5 years).

BERIBEEDRAE 2 HIBBEBMEER - #
B RAIREE B AR 2 ERFUE M E IR G@HER
mAER - R2018%F12831H » REBE W A Al
4 a8 DU SH R R FE R T 0 A1 2 B538381,329,000
BT (20174 : 428,464,000 JT) W R IE T TR
T8 & 62,919,000 7T (20174 : 78,160,000/
JC) °© 381,329,000/ JT 2 %t 18 /&5 18 I & 5 m B
HA (20174 : 340,664,000/ T &= m B H - M
87,800,000/ L i FASF A JE W) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

11. DIVIDEND

1. RE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

Proposed dividend EERE 40,597 60,896

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: HK3.0 cents per share). The proposed
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The proposed dividend of HK$40,597,000
(2017: HK$60,896,000), calculated based on the
Company’s number of shares issued at the date of this
annual report, is not recognised as a liability in these
consolidated financial statements.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the following data:

EESEENEET2018F12A31B IEFE IR
BR2.0810L (20174F : GAR3.058U) AR B - M
FZREBAFARIBEREEREBFAS it
% FAEE - BREARFTNRAFRALHE %
TRMEE T E RN ERR B 2%40,597,0005 7T
(20174F : 60,896,000/& 7T ) W R 4R A B ISR KR
NERB—IHAE -

12. BRER
FIREARFMYBE TS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174

Profit for the year attributable to RAGERFEERGZ
owners of the Company (HK$'000) RNEF RN (FHET) 113,321 220,097

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

RAFTESRERRFNZ
LA MNEFHEE

2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000

FREXAM GEM) 5.58 10.84

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any potential ordinary share
outstanding.

HRARALEEAIARBETEEE AR RLE
BRESREERN -
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018F 12 A31H It FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. ¥ -BERRZRE
EQUIPMENT
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
BER machinery vehicles  and fixtures  in progress Total
RENELEE  RERES B BRAREE HBIE £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2017 R201751A18
Cost A 434,981 111,698 11,365 8,460 13,201 579,705
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (49,100) (84,263) (9.472) (7,189) - (150,024)
Net book amount FRFE 385,881 27,435 1,893 1,271 13,201 429,681
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEWITENANBLEE
Opening net book amount EMREEE 385,881 27,435 1893 1271 13,201 429,681
Exchange differences ERZE 24,904 1,095 320 1,891 821 29,031
Additions WE 3,492 5975 453 1,142 10,635 21,697
Transfer upon completion TIER 10,755 - - - (10,755) -
Revaluation of buildings upon transferto ~ EREBERENENET
investment properties 20,708 - - - - 20,708
Transfer to investment properties ERNENE (49.478) - - - - (49.478)
Disposals ek - (5,947) - (326) - (6,273)
Depreciation e (14,116) (9,498) (378) (1,022) - (25,014)
Closing net book amount ERREAE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,95 13,902 42035
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12831R
Cost R 445,362 112,821 12,138 11,167 13,902 595,390
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (63,216) (93,761) (9,850) (8.211) - (175,038)
Net book amount BEFE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,956 13,902 420,352
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13. Y% -BERRE(E)
EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
BER machinery vehicles  and fixtures  in progress Total
BENZEE  BEREE 55 HRR%E fRIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
AL AL TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Year ended 31 December 2018 BENBENANBLEE
Opening net book amount EMREEE 382,146 19,060 2,288 2,956 13,902 420,352
Exchange differences ERZE (15,844) (1,500) (74) (99) (647) (18,164)
Additions AE = 3411 = 729 623 4,763
Transfer upon completion TIER - 387 - - (387) -
Transfers R (23,244) 23,244 - - - -
Disposals e - (625) (245) (476) - (1,346)
Depreciation e (27,930) (8,268) (594) (1,214) - (38,006)
Closing net book amount EXBREIE 315,128 35,709 1375 1,896 13,491 367,599
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31R
Cost A 389,296 115,265 1,525 9,613 13,491 535,190
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (74,168) (79,556) (6,150) (111 - (167,591)
Net book amount EH3E 315,128 35,709 1375 1,896 13,491 367,599

Depreciation expense of HK$2,048,000 (2017:
HK$1,034,000), HK$4,946,000 (2017: HK$2,668,000)
and HK$31,012,000 (2017: HK$21,312,000) has been
charged to selling and marketing costs, cost of sales and
administrative expenses, respectively.

Rental expenses amounting to HK$16,629,000 (2017:
HK$17,111,000) relating to the lease of properties are
included in the statement of profit or loss.

1 & 7 S #2,048,000/8 7T (20174 : 1,034,000
7S 7T) 4,946,000/ T (20174 : 2,668,000/
Jt) &31,012,000/% 7t (20174 : 21,312,000/%
TL)EDRIFFAEE TS HERAE - $HEKAK
MITBFAX -

ISR 16,629,000/48 TS (20174 -
17,111,000 T) Bt AlBm R 2HE X -

HEEFEARMKERIE 2018FFHK

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

In December 2018, the Board was notified that China
Information Security Research Institute Co., Ltd.
("CIS Research Institute”) had not yet transferred the
legal title of Block C of China Electronics Information
Security Technology Research and Development
Foundation in the southern area of Future and Science
Technology City, Beigijia, Changping District, Beijing,
the PRC (the “Property”) free from any encumbrances
and debts to Huada Electronics. CIS Research Institute
advised that it was actively putting efforts to unify the
property rights and did not indicate its unwillingness
to a reasonable extension of the 9 January 2019 (the
"Extended Original Transfer Date”) for the transfer
of the legal title of the Property free from any
encumbrances and debts to Huada Electronics, and
the Board then had not yet determined to terminate
the agreement to purchase the Property and its
supplemental agreement (collectively, the “Transfer
Agreement”). The Board then also was of the view
that Huada Electronics could extend the Extended
Original Transfer Date with CIS Research Institute given
reasonable extension of the transfer period was in line
with the interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Given that the Board had not concluded
whether the Transfer Agreement was very likely or not
likely to be extended and completed at 31 December
2018, the Board continued to classify the Property
with a net book amount of HK$288,091,000 (2017:
HK$313,889,000) and the land use rights of the
Property with a net book amount of HK$11,302,000
(2017: HK$12,314,000) as non-current asset at 31
December 2018.

13. Y% BERREE)

R2018F 128 ' EECEMBFBHEELEHE
BRERAR ([FEEFEELEHER]) EREME
AREFEEFEILRATE FEIEERF KRB
MEARE TS LTENEBLEEEMCRE
([ZME) TIHEERNEREEREEZEEE
B AREELEMARRTHEEERGEDR
—FEEENEI REXRPTEEAELEER
EEZVETNEENEREERER AT HE
#/2019F1A98 ((ZERMREZ A 5
R MEECEREIERTRIBEZVERN
EkEmTRE (BRI EERZE]) OHE -
EECERNTRAEARETRUNFENEFEE
ELeMERERZEENREZRE BAS
AEEREZEHFTAARARARARARBREAELE
M#FE - ENEEEN2018F12A3MHERB =
PR EEE s 4B S Tl A sk N 1) BE IR 4B HE N ST R O A
W EEER2018F12A31B N E B R®EF
{8288,091,0005 7t (20174F : 313,889,000/ 7T)
R Z W E N BRMEIFEE1,302,0005 7T (20174 ¢
12,314,000/ L) Mz ME T FERES B RIE
MENEE ©
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYZE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Beginning of the year F 4] 51,202 -
Transfer from property, EREME  WENRREE
plant and equipment = 49,478

Exchange differences PE =% (2,355) 1,724

End of the year FR 48,847 51,202

(a) The investment properties are located in the (a) ZEREMELMRPEIN A1 Z205H
PRC and are subject to various tenancies with ZZERANER -
terms ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

(b) The rental income from investment properties (b) REZE2018F12A3MBIEEE  KEY
for the year ended 31 December 2018 EHBESWA E2,531,00008 7T °
amounted to HK$2,531,000.

(0) The fair value of the Group’s investment (0 REBREWER2018F12A31BZA

properties at 31 December 2018 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. The
valuation was principally based on direct
comparison method by taking into account the
terms of any existing leases and other external
evidence such as current market rents or sales
for similar types of properties in the locality,
and using capitalisation rates that reflect current
market expectation for the assets being valued.
For all investment properties, their current uses
represent the highest and best use.

At 31 December 2018, all of the fair value
measurements of the Group’s investment
properties were categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note
3.3. There were no transfers of fair value
measurements into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

S BT i B R & B AT ] BE (R 6 8 L S
RAERNEXREEM - HEEET
BEEFRBRABNE BETHE - ZEE
TEERERLEL s AERREELY
Z AR e Bt SN RE B (A0 10 BT 5 3 3 R
BAUYMEZBRBMSHSHEEER) L
ERARBREAGEEZEEZRBMISEMS
ZERNELREFE - EREMERES
BERAREERERZERE -

R2018F12831H REEMAXRED
(N ARENEHBREEAARBERRIER
ME=H - RAERFIERBEHDEFIEFH
RHF33R - RERN ZESREWEY
FEARBEFEEAXELE=R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

14.

(@)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the
management of the Group works with Asset
Appraisal Limited to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the Board.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31

14.
(@)

REWE (&)
(&)

RBERKR - AEBEREBRFHEEE
HERE AR AR ARRY RETEER SR
=M RAAERENBEITERBE - &
BEAREBEHRERNES KRAEESE
HKEBONREA o

EREANEUNBRZBEBELAAEFE(E=
BOMBRERINT :

Range of
unobservable Relationship of
inputs/weighted unobservable inputs to

December 2018 Valuation Unobservable average fair value
Description 2018%12H31 technique(s) inputs BOBE HES BUBHE HEEAAEB
F#15 ADARE ®EFE gHUBEREZHE B/ MEFHE HEE
HK$'000
TET
Office building and 48,847  Direct Market price RMB30,810 The higher the market
carparks — Beijing comparison  TIHER per square metre  price, the higher the
BYEREM-IR method FEHHK  fairvalue
BERLBUR AR#30,810C mHERES AAE
Ba
15. LAND USE RIGHTS 15. tTHhFERE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Beginning of the year F9 12,314 11,944
Exchange differences EHER (550) 822
Amortisation B 5H (462) (452)
End of the year FR 11,302 12,314

All the land use rights are located in the PRC and with
remaining lease terms ranging from 10 years to 50

years.

160

Fra L AR A B M IAFISGEZAE10E
S0F#FA °

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A =
e EEmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. H|EEE
Computer
software
E 4
HK$'000
TH&T
At 1 January 2017 R201751818
Cost X AR 142,647
Accumulated amortisation e (136,689)
Net book amount IREFE 5,958
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A318 LFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 5,958
Exchange differences EHZERR 299
Additions NE 16,042
Disposal & (72)
Amortisation 54 (19,358)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,869
At 31 December 2017 2017%12H31H
Cost DN 158,988
Accumulated amortisation e (156,119)
Net book amount R FEE 2,869
Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z2018F12A31B LEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 2,869
Exchange differences EHERE (108)
Additions NE 6,209
Amortisation A (6,911)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 2,059
At 31 December 2018 72018%12H31H
Cost X A 9,413
Accumulated amortisation RETH 5 (7,354)
Net book amount EmEFE 2,059
Amortisation expense amounting to HK$6,911,000 #$559526,911,000/8 7T (20174F © 19,358,000/
(2017: HK$19,358,000) has been charged to research TEHATHREXYE TR R AH -

and development costs under administrative expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

17.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

17.

REZEQATRE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A831BLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Beginning of the year F1) 2,782,326 2,449,780
Additions £ n - 7,514
Share of results E(EEE 126,651 129,874
— Share of post-acquisition profit — R U 1R s 132,454 SIS, /8
— Loss on cancellation of ——RgE R E 2 EHE
subsidiaries of an associate og==NGl g (1,286) -
— (Loss)/gain on anti-dilution of interest ——MBE AR ER
in an associate R (E8R) W (4,517) 30,075
Exchange differences PE =58 (128,058) 177,977
Dividend f% 2 (51,313) (51,000)
Share of revaluation gains on properties FEIEEEMH W E 5,853 1,107
Share of currency translation differences EHEBIRE Z58 (69,682) 67,074
End of the year FR 2,665,777 2,782,326

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2018 and

2017 are as follows:

Place of establishment

7

Principal place of

Bt 48 N Bl FR20184F 2017512 A831H 2 1B M

Interest held

Name and type of legal entity operation and activities Paid-in capital gt $5
tH RIBBRAFME IZRERBRER ghax 2018 2017
China Electronics Optics Valley Cayman Islands, limited PRC, development and HK$761,821,200 33.47% 33.06%
Union Holding Company Limited liability company operation of business parks (2017: HK$771,332,400)
("CEoU") MERE BRAMLA TECEREZERREE  761.821,0008T
PELRBAERARLA (20175 : 771,332, 40078 )
(MMERA])
Beijing Chipadvanced Technology Inc.  PRC, limited liability company PRC, provision of integrated RMB40,740,000 10.36% 10.36%
IRBZRERHERAA hE BRELAA circuit testing services AR 40,740,000

BB REERERAARE

In the opinion of the Board, CEOVU, an associate of the

Group, is material to the Group.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 17. REBEQARRE(F)

(Cont’d)
The fair value of the Group’s interest in CEOVU at 31 REERFEXARZEZN2018F12A31BZ A
December 2018 based on the closing price of HK$0.43 7 187%$1,096,500,000/8 7T © NIREBEEBRFELA
per CEOVU ordinary share as quoted on The Stock LTBRN2018F12AMBERBHAERSFAR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 31 December 2018 RNAFHRZ WM E0.43B L& -

was HK$1,096,500,000.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in associates at 31 December 2018

(2017: nil).

Set out below are the summarised financial information

of CEOVU and its subsidiaries:

R2018F12 531 A AR BN E & A RS2
BEBAEQ017F : &) -

TEAANEMBARIZHMBERWT

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018%F12H31H 20174F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'00_0
FBxT FHETT
Current B
Assets BE 12,642,138 12,565,416
Liabilities afE (5,666,477) (4,632,298)
Non-current IR
Assets BE 5,952,458 5,034,072
Liabilities afE (4,196,408) (3,693,895)
Net assets BEFE 8,731,711 9,273,295
Net assets attributable to owners of ~ FEEBRTEXAEEI/AEE
CEOVU < EBEFE 7,923,344 8,374,301
Investment in an associate N—EBERNRIRE 2,652,135 2,768,517

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Revenue WA 3,589,423 3,151,637
Profit for the year attributable to REEmMNEBRNFRELAR
owners of CEOVU BamaE 395,938 286,871
Other comprehensive income for AEEEMEEKE
the year:
Revaluation gains on properties ) 3¢ 8 fd W & 17,578 3,373
Currency translation differences B E E R (209,282) 204,467
Total comprehensive income for the AFEZEKR=BHEEBER
year attributable to owners of CEOVU R EXAE=FFEE 204,234 494,711
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 12 A31H L F/E
18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. MR—HEEELQAARE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Beginning of the year F1) 4,106 6,406
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) JEEBRRBER, (EE) 228 (2,518)
Exchange differences ME N E R 90 218
Disposal k= (4,424) -
End of the year FR - 4,106
19. INVENTORIES 19 78
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018128310 2017412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Work in progress 8 m 151,927 137,978
Finished goods ZLRK mh 451,752 268,107
603,679 406,085
The cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAEAIAUFTAHEHENETAZFEKRAEAAR
and included in cost of sales amounted to 1,117,095,000/ 7T (20174 : 946,555,000/5
HK$1,117,095,000 (2017: HK$946,555,000). JC) °
Provision for inventories of HK$40,285,000 (2017: A 840,285,000 T 2 TF E B E (20174 -
HK$12,056,000) has been charged to cost of sales. 12,056,000/ 70) B 5t ASHE KA -

164 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It FE
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 200 B RHEHMEWFIE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%12831H 20179F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables =7 & 757,585 775,934
Less: Loss allowance for Ji OB SRR (M b))
impairment (Note (b)) (65,402) (48,259)
Trade receivables — net B REIWGRIE - F58 692,183 727,675
Other receivables from third parties Hib W S =7 FIE 17,039 11,110
Less: Loss allowance for J OB SRR (i)
impairment (Note (d)) (348) (166)
Other receivables from third parties Hia U E = HKIB—F58
- net 16,691 10,944
Other receivables from related parties i & Y B Bk A + 5K I8
(Note 31) (Ba#31) 3,470 1,485
Undeducted input value-added tax ANBHEIEIZER 3,355 21,143
Prepayments and deposits BRRBERES 7,248 6,023
722,947 767,270
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables of the Group
approximated their fair values.

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of
HK$64,175,000 (2017: HK$26,368,000) (Note 317).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2018 and 2017 were denominated in the
following currencies:

200 ESREMEWEEZ)

M2018F M2017F12A31H - AEB 2B 5 K&
HEMEWRREZEREAEEEAABEHREE -

ZoREMBKZEHAERERES - 5t AE
SREBFRBELEGAZEREBATESREL
64,175,0005 7T (20174 : 26,368,000/ 7T) (K1
i£31) o

NEER20184F K2017FE12A318 28 5 K A
thEKRFIEEEEESMT ¢

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018%12H318 20174 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Renminbi AR 722,467 764,362
Hong Kong dollars AT 480 2,908
722,947 767,270

(a) The majority of the Group's sales are with (a) AEBZHEXRE M 2EEHRI0BE

credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The
remaining amounts are due immediately after
the delivery of goods. The ageing analysis of
trade receivables (net of loss allowance for
impairment) presented based on the revenue
recognition date is as follows:

1350 EH#AHEEREBRE R MR J
H - RIBWAERBIRNE SRR
(BRI EESEEE) BRI T -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018%128318 20175F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$ 000

THET TET

Current to 30 days 30H A 330,280 208,398
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 63,652 62,798
61 — 180 days 61THZ180H 169,427 256,138
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180 A ER1ER 112,669 106,934
Over 1 year 1 E 16,155 93,407
692,183 727,675
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 200 BEZRHEHMEKKEE)
(Cont’d)
(b) Movements in the loss allowance for (b) AEEEFERFBRESEREZE
impairment of the Group’s trade receivables are wmr
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Beginning of the year F 9] 48,259 31,747
Impairment losses, net R BB 1B 20,044 19,827
Written off 1 58 - (6,021)
Exchange differences PE W =% (2,901) 2,706
End of the year FR 65,402 48,259

At 31 December 2018, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables measured at
amortised cost was HK$591,251,000, of
which HK$514,541,000 was within one
year with expected credit loss rate of 0.1%,
HK$6,482,000 was between one year to five
years with expected credit loss rate ranging
from 5.0% to 98.0%, HK$9,491,000 was
over five years with expected credit loss
rate of 100.0%, and HK$60,737,000 was
from customers with specific credit risk with
expected credit loss rate of 90.0%.

R2018F12A31H ' ILEEK AT ERN
B 5 e WGk IE B HR | H A591,251,000%8
7T 9 B AB514,541,000/8 7T B1E R - 78
H{ZEEIB X A0.1% ° 6,482,000/ 7T 4
1 E5F HEHEEBEBEEXN F5.0%%
98.0% ° 9,491,000/ 7T A5F A + - B HA
ZEEEXA100.0% * 60,737,000 7T
RKERBRETRARMNERS  BHEEEE
R 590.0% °
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20.
(Cont'd)
(0) The ageing analysis of trade receivables which (0)

were past due but not impaired under the
disclosure requirements prevailing prior to 1
January 2018 are as follows:

EZREMBRFREE)

RIER201851 AR AL RM BEER
B0 2L 1 4R1E 3 R 1 2 5 B R
WA :

31 December

2017
2017412 A31H
HK$ 000
FHET
Current to 30 days 30BN 108,791
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 59,992
61 — 180 days 61THZ180H 57,355
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180 A ER1FR 20,514
Over 1 year 1TF A E 32,106
278,758

(d) Movements in the loss allowance for (d) AEBEMERZBRESBREEG &

impairment of the Group’s other receivables are m
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Beginning of the year F1 ‘ 166 705
Impairment losses/(Reversal of impairment JR{EE 18~ (5 (B & 18 R #)

losses) 196 (569)
Exchange differences ME N E R (14) 30
End of the year FR 348 166

Other receivables are mainly rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and advance to
employees. Majority of the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default. In the situation where no
comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied for such
receivables at 31 December 2018 was 3.03%.

HEWRBTEAESES - ITHE
B e MFEME B RIE - LA XI5 &%
EA YT B O BN GRIBE B -
EEEEZNECEEFIANTLARMNIG
AT EEEEFBEERFERAZREAEE
BABEBTSNEBRE T AETHS - B
BRB ML AR RIEITMRR R A K
FKOEAOTETER (nEA) o It F 'K
THR2018F12A31HFIERMNERERA
3.03% °
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

21. ROAEHABZERMEE T
HHESTHMEE

ASSETS
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%128318 20179 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Wealth management products MEEREM 42,029 202,485

The wealth management products were measured and
classified as available-for-sale financial assets in 2017.
The wealth management products were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at 1 January
2018 following the adoption of HKFRS9 as detailed in
Note 2.1.

The wealth management products are issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with non-guaranteed return, denominated in RMB and
with terms ranging from 1 month to 3 months. The
fair value of these investments was determined with
reference to the statements provided by the commercial
banks.

22. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

VEEEEMMN07FZAIHENESHEETE
RnfE o AR 2.1 ERABT BT B R
AR FERE  BEEEEMMN2018F1A1H
MAMHHESREEESBARAABETAERR
CREE °

MEEEER ATEBRRITR;T ZEWE
EREMDIABRARIFFRIEDR - WAARKEF
BRASNTFIEIEARINE - ZEREZANE
RS ERMERITARBZEREMEE -

22. SEHAIER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
2018%12H831H 20179F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At financial institutions BRI AT
— A related party (Note 37) —BABt AT (HaE31) 91,303 11,000

Short-term deposits represent deposits at financial
institutions with original maturity over 3 months.
The effective interest rate on these deposits at 31
December 2018 was 3.23% (2017: 2.05%) per annum.

HHATFR VSRS EE A3 A A 2 B E
T - N2018F12A318 » ZSFARZEEFEF
R /33.23% (20174 : 2.05%)
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERREEEY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185128318 20174 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash Re
At banks and on hand RITHEEFENERS 164,398 58,095
At other financial institutions H A B A s 4 17
— A related party (Note 31) —FaEs AN+ (Hat31) 211,127 148,254
375,525 206,349
Short-term deposits (Note (a)) MHTFER (K EE)
At other financial institutions Hih I s 4717
— A related party (Note 31) —BAEE AT (H72231) - 167,482
375,525 373,831
(a) Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks (a) RHTFRDERIBABAIEASIIATZ
or other financial institutions with original RITHRE M B BT -
maturity of 3 months or less.
24. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 24, BAREE
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
BREB.BTZEER
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE ERTRER [N RAEE 8%
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TERT TERT
At 1 January 2017, ®2017%1818 >
31 December 2017, 20175128318 »
1 January 2018 and 20181818 K
31 December 2018 2018%12831H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

25. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 25.

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FHET

Beginning of the year F9 31,863 34,532
Exchange differences MEHER (1,947) 2,249
Additions N 23,535 10,266
Credited to the statement of profit or loss Bz &K (9,368) (15,184)
End of the year FR 44,083 31,863
The amount mainly represented various subsidies ZHEFERRASEMERMAEFIERD MM

granted by and received from local government BT MR U 2 R TEHB) - B IR B ST
authorities for financing various research and BB A BRBEREME KA E 2 g
development projects conducted by the Group. These RAEWA o

subsidies will be recognised as income over the period
necessarily to match with the cost that they are
intended to compensate.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. BEZRHMESRE
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%12831H 2017F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F& T
Trade payables Z 5 FIE 401,972 415,738
Other payables to related parties H b e~ BB A £ 5RIB
(Note 31) (H15E31) 9,444 29,240
Salary and welfare payables F& 11 % B 0 4@ £ 57,341 53,313
Other taxes payables H At AT B IE 9,350 13,526
Other payables and accrued expenses — ELfth & -t ;RIE R TE 1R & A
(Note (a)) (Htit(a)) 160,373 122,984
638,480 634,801
(a) Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (a) HEmEMGRERBREAETZAENAR

represented payables for software usage fees
for the purposes of research and development
and sales commissions.

MRELFEERENZEMHFERERHER
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & ZE2018F 124318 It F &
26. BESRHMENRIEE)

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Cont’d)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables
mainly based on the date of invoices is as follows:

AEEEZENFATEZEZRRANRE DT

mT

31 December

31 December

2018 2017

2018%12H31H 2017F12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FETT

Current to 30 days 30HA 258,037 205,936
31 - 60 days 31H £60H 58,261 90,051
Over 60 days 60H A £ 85,674 119,751
401,972 415,738

Included in the balance of trade payables are
trade payables to related parties amounting to
HK$38,819,000 (2017: HK$318,245,000) (Note 31).

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts
of trade and other payables of the Group approximated
their fair values.

SFAEZRENRELEGHAN CENEBALTE S
FXTH 438,819,000/ 7T (20174 : 318,245,000

JT) (K1a£31) °

N2018F M2017F12A31H  AEB 2B 5 &
HEtEMNREZEMEREARBEMES -
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

27. RITKRHEHMEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018%12831H 20179F12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T T T

Bank borrowings RITIEE 2,226,820 2,242,695
Entrusted loans from related parties R A TZLERK 68,477 71,778
2,295,297 2,314,473

Secured [ 57,500 -
Unsecured K 1 2,237,797 2,314,473
2,295,297 2,314,473

Bank and other borrowings were arranged at fixed and
variable rates. The average effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank and other borrowings at 31 December
2018 was 4.15% (2017: 3.57%) per annum.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying
amounts of bank and other borrowings of the Group
approximated their fair values.

At 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of
HK$57,500,000 were secured by short-term deposit of
HK$62,771,000.

At 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of
HK$2,168,455,000 were guaranteed by CEC.

The bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in the following currencies:

BITREMEEDNIREBNZELTH - R2018%F
12A318 - XEERTREGMEENFTHERSF
F =& BA15% (20174 : 3.57%) ©

M2018F M2017F12A31H » KEB 2 R1T R
HtEErEEHERAE AR BERS -

R2018F 12 A31H + A%k57,500,0007%8 TTAVERTT
BB JhLA62,771,000/% 7T 58 Hi7F T/E KR o

R2018%F 12 H31H » A#2,168,455,000/% 7T 1Y
RTEERPEE FEEIRMEER-

AEEZRTREMEEREESHWMT :

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

20184128318 20179F12A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T F& T

Renminbi AR 2,237,797 2,214,473
Hong Kong dollars &I 57,500 100,000
2,295,297 2,314,473
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

28. CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM 28. REELCZHETRE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit before taxation Bk B4 BT A 144,315 218,006
Adjustments for: FHE -
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERERETE
and equipment 38,006 25,014
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESE 6,911 19,358
Interest income ) B A (5,614) (8,731)
Interest expenses FMexH 97,610 101,777
Gain on disposal of property, LEME BEREKE
plant and equipment Wz (404) (5,266)
Gain on disposal of a business HE—BEEBKKE = (102,510)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—FHEeERrlE (2,415) -
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR A 4 8 462 452
Share of results of associates i NI (126,651) (129,874)
Share of result of a joint venture BE—EEERA¥EE (228) 2,518
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 I H h fE WK IE
other receivables WEEE 20,240 19,258
Provision for inventories FTEZEBE 40,285 12,056
Investment income of financial assets X AR B ABZEREE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 E WS (10,440) -
202,077 152,058
Changes in working capital LEEREH
Inventories FE (237,879) (138,705)
Trade and other receivables 5 Kk H MW FRIA 26,774 212,828
Deferred government grants 4R T R 8 B 12,220 -
Changes in contract liabilities EHBEES 2,915 —
Advances from customers PN HRIE = 2,008
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M FRIA 2,535 70,714
Cash flows generated from operations &K2E4LZRERE 8,642 298,903
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29. COMMITMENTS

e BmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 12 A31H L FE
29. EiE
REHEEAE

Operating lease commitments

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for office
premises are as follows:

AEBERBETAIBR AT R ZKEHEM
ARARINZ REHEFIBRLRBRWT

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%F12H31H 20174%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Not later than one year 1R 10,911 11,499
In the second to fifth year F2FEEFSFR 6,282 4,593
17,193 16,092
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 300 HBEAEE

The Group did not have any material contingent liability

at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

MR2018F12A318 ' AEEVELMEARLEE
& (20174 : &) o
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions

in the ordinary course of business with related parties

during the year:

31.

BEBALRSE RER

BRRAGEMBRREMTNERENRS MG
BN RAFEARNEB R B E XK BET R
BALTETT NTISHERRS :

(a) Significant transactions with related (a) HEBALIZEARXRS
parties
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
CEC FEETFER
Interest expenses A B 3,040 3,143
Guarantee fee ERE 11,171 10,931
Companies under common THEEFER
control of CEC HEEHHZQFE]
Sale of products 5 & E oo 167,559 168,092
Purchase of goods and services REE R MRS 590,804 636,853
Interest income B U A 3,294 1,288
Interest expenses MEXH — 7,008
Rental expenses e H 2,360 1,308
Rental income GEE AL N 2,531 1,217
Property management fee MEERE 8,605 6,674
Fees and commissions for financial KRB FEE
services ik = 15
Catering service fee BEHRRBE - 3,702
Addition of borrowings MGEE - 290,446
Repayment of borrowings BEEE — 591,023
Associate B N F]
Purchase of goods and services KEEmERS 7,437 -
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E
31- @Hy*ix%&" %(ﬂ/\)

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES (Cont’d)

(b) Significant balances with related (b) EHEREREBALTZEKXLER
parties
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
20185 12H31H 2017F12831H
HK$'000 HK$100_0
FExT FHTT
CEC FEETER
Other payables E{th j& ~f ;1B 3,424 3,589
Borrowings BE 68,477 71,778
Companies under common TSHEEFER
control of CEC HEEH 2 QT
Trade receivables 25 W ERIE 64,175 19,020
Other receivables H b jE W k18 3,453 1,485
Deposits T 302,430 326,736
Trade payables B Z MK 37,425 318,245
Other payables Eh JE A< 3R 6,020 25,591
Advance from customers BFEEMNRIE = 5,988
Associate 3N
Trade payables B 5l 1,394 -
Joint venture =N
Trade receivables =N = 7,348
Other than the deposits and the borrowings which SRERREERH S J:}Jit%ﬁﬂé‘ﬁ)\ik EBR
are interest bearing, the above balances with B B WRBABN S R FKEE - B
related parties were unsecured, interest-free and TEEAERT NMIZEF KL 35%ET 8 -

settled according to the relevant contract terms. The
borrowings from related parties are unsecured and with

an interest rate of 4.35% per annum.

(c) Key management compensation

() FEEBAEME

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  # % i%&f%ﬁﬂ 5,797 6,332
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET SR 550 418
6,347 6,750
32. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 32. HAREIE
On 9 January 2019, the Transfer Agreement M2019F1 A9 @ EiE D BIE H G L IEH
was terminated in accordance with its terms and MR IF - AT FR2019F1 5168 WE A H
conditions. Huada Electronics received a refund of EB R R ARM258 407,6017T 1B 2 4T
RMB258,407,601 on 16 January 2019 from CIS iy R S (o F A R a5 A o
Research Institute and relinquished its right to use the
Property and its right to earn a profit from the Property
to CIS Research Institute.
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

33. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT 33.

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

BRAARRAMBRR R ZEHR

COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%F12A318 2017%F12H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ik FHT F& T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 1,539 2,150
Investments in subsidiaries MR R E 34 1,037,086 1,037,086
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U — RSB B A B 0B 2,128,423 2,231,011
3,167,048 3,270,247
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 25 K H b W RIE 179,659 71,923
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESREE = 142,360
Financial assets at fair value BRARETAER
through profit or loss EEEE 37,358 -
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 114,801 30,124
331,818 244,407
Total assets EEH#E 3,498,866 3,514,654
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzRkEE
Equity =
Share capital and premium AR A K 5 (B 24 825,454 825,454
Reserves 1% (a) 413,383 413,051
1,238,837 1,238,505
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIAGE 17,119 -
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H h FE ~H 5RIE 9,196 6,389
Bank and other borrowings RIThEMES 2,226,705 2,242,575
Income tax payable JE 1~ P45 78 K IE 7,009 27,185
2,242,910 2,276,149
Total liabilities BEHE 2,260,029 2,276,149
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEHAE 3,498,866 3,514,654

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the board of directors on 29 March

2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dong Haoran E %A

Director E%
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE2018F 124318 It FE

33. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT 33. EEAQAIMBEMRRERZER
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (4&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)
(a) Reserves of the Company (a) A1 FAZREE
Translation Contributed Retained
reserve surplus earnings Total
ERREE ERELR REBHER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FETT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1818 (6,236) 231,971 205,783 431,518
Total comprehensive income  Z®HE Wz 4258 13,823 — 28,606 42,429
Payment of dividend AR B = = (60,896) (60,896)
At 31 December 2017 M2017512831H 7,587 231,971 173,493 413,051
At 1 January 2018 20181818 7,587 231,971 173,493 413,051
Total comprehensive income 2 M Y 25 42 %8 (7,463) - 68,691 61,228
Payment of dividend IR 1~ % B — = (60,896) (60,896)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12H31H 124 231,971 181,288 413,383

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as
specified in Section 54 thereof.

REBEARZI9B1FRRNE (BIER])  ARRIZE
BRBRAI N Z A RVEBSMEMEIAZETERT
D& T RBUER
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 124318 It F &

34. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 3. MIBARIKRE-ZEAAQAH
- COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%12H318 20175F12A31H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, & & —3E_E % -
at cost DN ] 1,037,086 1,037,086
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEM B A AIN20185F k2017F12A318 2 &7
2018 and 2017 are as follows: BT

Interest held

i 3+
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and 2018 2017
Name and type of legal entity ~ operation and activities paid-in capital  Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
£ RIBHERATHE TEQEBURER AMRERER E& GF E% k3
Huada Electronics  PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
EXET hE - EREAAR integrated circuit chips AR %446,800,0007
e ERERLAZ
et RHE
Huahong PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB158,471,000 - 95.64% - 95.64%
4 B EREEAR integrated circuit chips ARH158,471,0007C
hE - ERERLCRZ
Rt RHE
In the opinion of the Board, the non-controlling EEERR BEUZIHEREREAEEMNS B
interests of Huahong is immaterial to the Group and TEE HUEFREZEM 2HBEER -
thus the financial information of Huahong is not
disclosed.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E
35. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF

THE COMPANY

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2018

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its

subsidiaries, are as follows:

35. ALQTAEENMHE

(i) HZE2018F12A31R L EE

EREE (BRAQRNENE QR REHRE M
BRI EmT

Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary

Name of director Fee Salary HEFE RIKER bonuses Total
ESpE e E TEREE atéEl WA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR THRT THET TERT
Dong Haoran EEN - - - - - -
Jiang Juncheng ZEK - - - - - -
Ma Yuchuan®@ Fx)@ - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 - 750 - 177 654 1,581
Liu Jinmei® 2| Shige - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRiEE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng B kA 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum R 200 - - - - 200
600 750 - 177 654 2,181

m Discretionary bonus for the year 2017 approved and paid in

2018.
@ Resigned on 15 January 2018.
@ Appointed on 15 January 2018.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors had waived any

emoluments during the year.

M 2017 BB IEAL R 201 8FE SEHEAX N 3 I ©

@ 72018F 1 A15H BHET
@ R2018F1HISHEZT -

FRAEEYEAESINEMNMESESME
AEEKMBE 2 BERERBET ZME - FR
MEEFRETMAME -
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eV BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z£2018F 12 A31HIFFE

35. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Name of director Fee Salary

BEEHA e

E

HK$'000 HK$'000

35. XARESNHE (&)

(i) #HZE20175F12A31BLFE

ERES (BRAQRNENEB AR REHRL M
BRI EmT

Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits scheme Discretionary
Eth@alfh ENEA bonuses Total
itE%ER a8l IBTEAL ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET FHET THT FHET TET

Dong Haoran BER - - - - - -
Ma Yuchuan SE - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 - 750 - 184 9150 1,849
Jiang Juncheng ZEK - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRIE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng Pk A 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum R 200 - - - - 200
600 750 - 184 915 2,449

m Discretionary bonus for the year 2016 approved and paid in
2017.

M 2016 FE B IS IEAT R 201 7R SEHEAZ B 30K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & %2018 12 A31H L F/E

36. NET DEBT 36. EXFH
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018%12H31H 2017F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMReZEEY 375,525 373,831
Liquid investments (Note (a)) MENEIRE (B it (a)) 42,029 202,485
Borrowings repayable —FARERE
within one year (2,295,297) (2,314,473)
Net debt (E R (1,877,743) (1,738,157)
Cash and liquid investments HWeEMREERE 417,554 576,316
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B E5E— BT M= (2,237,797) (2,214,473)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BSEE - ZHA X (57,500) (100,000)
Net debt (ER D (1,877,743) (1,738,157)
Liabilities
from
financing
activities -
Other assets Borrowings
HipEE repayable
within
Liquid one year
investments REZEH
(Note (a)) =i
Cash REMIRE —FR Total
Bé (Hti#a) BERFE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Year ended 31 December & Z20175128318
2017 LEE
Opening net debt FOEBFE 911,917 37,249 (3,547,123)  (2,597,957)
Cash flows ReERE (512,030) 157,155 1,437,863 1,082,988
Interest and issue cost B A B R BT AR
amortised - - (6,427) (6,427)
Exchange differences fEHE% (26,056) 8,081 (198,786) (216,761)
Closing net debt FREBFHE 373,831 202,485  (2,314,473)  (1,738,157)
Year ended 31 December & Z2018512831H
2018 LEE
Opening net debt FNEBFE 373,831 202,485  (2,314,473) (1,738,157)
Cash flows Bene 14,618 (159,760) (90,322) (235,464)
Unrealised fair value gains ARER AR BN - 3,229 - 3,229
Exchange differences =% (12,924) (3,925) 109,498 92,649
Closing net debt FREBFHE 375,525 42,029  (2,295,297) (1,877,743)

(a) Liquid investments comprise short-term
investments that are traded in an active market,
being the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (2017: available-for-sale

financial assets).

(@) RBIEREBIEEFIEERNTS LR B

RHRE  IAKERANZAAETA

BEEmEE (2017F  AftHELRE

E) -

HEEFEARMKERIE 2018FFHK

183



Five-year Financial Summary

AERBENEE
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE1N2A31BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 20174 2016%F 2015% 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(271) (E71)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)
(RERZ) (&%) (BEZ) (&E%) (REEZ)
(i) (i)
Revenue A 1,686,996 1,453,035 1,358,953 1,720,099 1,928,702
Profit for the year attributable to ~ AFEHEF| FBR
owners of the Company AARAERFEE 113,321 220,097 1,061,166 177,353 222,069
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 20174 20165 2015% 20145
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTiET FTET TET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (E5)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)  (Unaudited)
(RER) (EE%) (EZ) (&&= (REEZR)
(i) (i)
Total assets BEBSE 4,969,091 5,074,820 6,093,268 6,721,257 7,552,772
Total liabilities aEEE (3,027,908) (3,032,910)  (4,412,619) (5,170,282)  (6,014,867)
1,941,183 2,041,910 1,680,649 1,550,975 1,537,905

(i) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December
2014 and 2015 are restated using the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in HKAG5. Details of which were
disclosed in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

HE2014FE R2015F12A31B L FEZHEERBE
TR EAEGTIECI ESRATREZ A HETRAIED -
ERFBERAEEEET2016F12A31B IEFE 24

B BRI E2ARKE -
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